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2010 was another challenging year for the entire financial 
sector. regardless of the market conditions, evli Group’s 
business units all increased their commission income. ev-
li’s products and services were also highly commended, 
and the respected awards received during 2010 provide 
examples of this. for example, evli was ranked the best 
small fund management company in the nordic countries 
in the lipper funds awards 2010. evli also achieved sec-
ond place in an evaluation of the overall quality of finnish 
asset managers by institutional investors participating in 
a study carried out by scandinavian financial research.

in 2010, the board of directors focused on monitoring 
the integration of acquired businesses and on preparing 
a new growth strategy. 

in the first half of the year, the board’s areas of fo-
cus included expanding the wealth management business 
operations in line with the strategy implemented in fall 
2009 and early 2010 through corporate acquisitions. in 
the second half of 2009, evli acquired carnegie’s finnish 
asset management business. the transaction enabled evli 
to strengthen its position in finland, especially in insti-
tutional asset management. the integration of the com-
panies acquired from carnegie into evli’s operations was 
completed in early spring.

in order to strengthen its swedish wealth manage-
ment operations, evli acquired the entire share capital of 
erik penser fonder ab from Urdar ab under a contract 
signed on october 19, 2009. control of erik penser fonder 
ab was transferred to evli on february 3, 2010 and the 
company’s operations were integrated into evli’s opera-
tions by the end of the summer. 

in the summer and early fall, the board of directors 
focused on evli’s new strategy and its finalization. the 
growth strategy aims to strengthen the status of evli’s 
core businesses, wealth management business and invest-
ment bank business in the northern baltic sea region and 
to ensure that evli’s clients receive the best possible, in-
dividualized service from leading experts in the business. 
the key to success is that evli will be able to offer its cus-
tomers new and innovative products continuously and 
competitively also in the future. 

in 2010 evli’s position as a corporate advisor operating 
in russia strengthened substantially. the Group’s russian 
operations constitute one of russia’s largest corporate fi-
nance service providers. in a comparison by thomson re-
uters, evli russia was ranked the third-largest adviser in 
russia, and fifth-largest in Mergermarket’s comparison. 
products and services related to russia form a significant 
part of the evli Group’s service concept. 

in addition to the current client segments – institu-
tions and high net worth individuals – the evli Group 
is also seeking investor-saver clients through electronic 
services. electronic trading enables the efficient acquisi-
tion of new investor-saver clients. 

the board of directors has been actively monitor-
ing the development of regulations associated with re-
muneration, and in this respect we can determine that 
evli’s reward systems are not in conflict with the new 
regulations.

evli’s market position - especially in finland – grew 
stronger, which was discernible in the increase in the 
number of private banking customers. with the market 
situation much more positive than in early 2010, we can 
embark on 2011 with confidence. the new strategy, com-
bined with the numerous measures carried out earlier, im-
proves the Group’s profitability and further strengthens 
its position especially in asset management operations.   

Market performance
the escalation of Greece’s debt crisis in the spring was 
one of the most significant events of 2010. the fear of 
financial difficulties spreading caused equity prices and 
long-term interest rates to decline. the stoxx index, which 
measures the european equity markets, was at its low-
est in the summer at 8.0 percent, and the yield on Ger-
man 10-year government bonds was 2.11 percent at its 
lowest. during the fall, the markets regained confidence 
in the acceleration of global economic growth. this view 
was supported by information about the U.s. federal re-
serve deciding to continue its purchase program on the 
fixed income markets and about tax concessions being 
continued in the Usa. share prices and long-term inter-
est rates rose substantially during the second half of the 
year despite the irish Government running into financial 
difficulties. 2011 continues to be overshadowed by con-
cerns about certain euro area members’ financing needs 
and the related arrangements.

in 2010, equity prices rose globally by 7.6 percent ac-
cording to Msci’s global index. the Msci emerging Mar-
kets free index, which measures equity market perform-
ance in emerging markets, rose by 16.8 percent and the 
stoxx index, which measures the european equity markets, 
rose by 9.4 percent. in finland the oMX Helsinki cap index 
rose by 24.8 percent and in sweden the oMX stockholm 
cap index rose by 23.1 percent. the baltix index, which 
describes the equity markets of the baltic countries, rose 
by 71.9 percent.

the european central bank kept its refinancing rate at 
one percent, but started reducing the bank system’s liquid-
ity through its money market operations. euro exchange 
rates fluctuated heavily during the year and were 7.3 per-
cent lower at the year-end. the swedish krona strength-
ened 12.6 percent in relation to the euro. the yield on Ger-
man 10-year government bonds finished at 2.97 percent. 
corporate bond risk premiums declined substantially.

during January-december, net subscriptions of fund 
units in finland totaled eUr -31.1 million (eUr 4,174.3 
million).

Revenue performance
the Group’s net revenue performed positively compared 
with 2009. the evli Group’s net revenue was eUr 59.4 
million, representing growth of 10 percent (eUr 53.8 mil-
lion). net revenue performance was positively influenced 
by increases in commission income from wealth Man-
agement operations and in advisory fee income. the de-
crease in net income from securities trading and foreign 
exchange dealing was mainly due to the Group’s treas-
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ury operations. the revenue performance of treasury op-
erations was weakened by uncertainty that spread to the 
fixed income markets from the end of spring and raised 
risk premiums. the evli Group’s investments are valued on 
the basis of market quotations.

the net revenue of the wealth Management unit rose 
by 37 percent on the previous year. this was primarily due 
to the increase in the market value of the assets under 
management and the subsequent increase in the unit’s 
accumulated commission income. the acquisitions car-
ried out in 2009 and the consequent additions of com-
mission income also increased the wealth Management 
unit’s net revenue performance for the review period. the 
acquisitions also contributed to the increase in assets un-
der management.

the Markets unit’s net revenue for the review period 
increased by 23 percent on the comparison period. the 
growth was derived, in particular, from net commission 
income, which increased by 44 percent compared with 
the corresponding period of 2009. 

the corporate finance unit’s net revenue doubled in 
relation to 2009. this net revenue growth was due to an 
increase in M&a activity. significant fluctuations in net 
revenue from one quarter to the next are typical of the 
corporate finance business. the unit’s mandate base is at 
a healthy level.

Result and cost structure
the Group’s profit before taxes and profit sharing with 
employees for the review period was eUr 8.2 million (eUr 
8.3 million). the profit before appropriations and taxes 
was eUr 4.2 million (eUr 5.3 million). the Group’s income/
expense ratio remained at the level of 2009, i.e. 1.1. 

the increase in the Group’s expenses was due to the 
acquisitions carried out in late 2009 and investments in 
marketing and in the development of new products and 
services. 

parent company’s profit performance
the net revenue of evli bank plc, the Group’s parent com-
pany, was approximately eUr 42.3 million for the finan-
cial year, which corresponds to the level of the previous 
year. the parent company’s profit was eUr 0.03 million 
(eUr 2.82 million). 

the depreciation of the parent company’s profit in 
2010 was increased by the depreciation of the goodwill 
of businesses acquired during 2009.

the parent company’s profit for 2009 was positive-
ly influenced by the contributions returned from the evli 
Group’s joint pension fund and left unpaid in the second 
half of the year. the effect of the above-mentioned items 
on profit in the parent company’s personnel expenses was 
approximately eUr 1.5 million.  on the other hand, the 
Group’s profit was negatively affected by the impairment 
of shares in subsidiaries, amounting to slightly over eUr 
2.0 million. 

balance sheet and funding 
the Group’s equity was eUr 56.8 million at the end of 
the review period. in the basel ii capital adequacy cal-
culation, evli applies the standardized approach (cap-
ital requirement for credit risk) and the basic indicator 

approach (capital requirement for operational risk). the 
Group’s capital adequacy ratio of 14.8 percent clearly ex-
ceeds the regulator’s requirement (8%).

the Group’s funding from the public and credit insti-
tutions decreased by seven percent compared with the 
previous year. the company’s loan portfolio increased by 
17 percent on the previous year to approximately eUr 58 
million. the ratio of loans granted by the Group to evli 
bank plc’s deposits from the public was 19 percent. the 
Group’s liquidity is solid.

Employees and organization
the Group had 282 employees (281) at the end of the 

review period. the number of employees increased by one 
person, up by 0.3 percent on the comparison period. 72 
percent of the personnel were employed in finland and 
28 percent abroad.

business areas
Wealth Management

wealth Management  
in numbers

1-12/ 
2010

1-12/ 
2009

change  
%

net revenue, M€ 32.5 23.6 37
operating profit / loss, M€ 6.8 2.8 149
personnel, at the end of period 91 94 -3
assets under management (net),  
at the end of period, M€ 5 159 4 897 5
Market share (evli fund  Mgmt 
company), % 5.1 4.6
net subscriptions to own funds, 
M€ 58.4 16.3
average rating of evli funds in 
Morningstar 3.5 3.3

wealth Management operations performed relatively well 
during the review period, in view of the market conditions. 
the unit’s net assets under management totaled eUr 5.2 
billion at the end of december (eUr 4.9 billion). this is 
five percent more than a year earlier. the assets managed 
by the unit decreased by eUr 32 million from the end of 
september. the year 2010 saw eUr 58.4 million in net sub-
scriptions to evli’s funds (2009: eUr 16.3 million). 

in the december fund comparison by the independ-
ent Morningstar, the average star rating of evli’s funds 
was 3.52 (3.26). of evli’s 29 funds, 23 were included in 
the comparison. 12 funds in all received the highest or 
second-highest Morningstar rating.

in a comparison of the returns of individual funds 
in January-december, the best-performing fixed income 
fund was evli ruble debt (which outperformed the bench-
mark index by 4.93%) and the best-performing equity 
fund was evli europe (which outperformed the bench-
mark index by 10.51%).

at the end of the year, with a market share of 5.1 per-
cent (2009: 4.6%), evli fund Management company ltd 
kept the position of fifth-largest fund management com-
pany in finland. the combined capital of the 29 mutu-
al funds managed by the company was eUr 3,159 mil-
lion (eUr 2,491 million) and the number of shareholders 
was 17,497 (15,033). the rise in market share originated 
primarily from the transfer of mutual funds managed by 
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carnegie fund Management company ltd, or the capital 
of these funds, under evli fund Management company’s 
management in 2010.

of evli’s funds, the biggest net subscriptions were 
gathered by evli alpha bond (eUr 122 million) and evli 
europe (eUr 82 million). the funds with the most capital 
at the year-end were evli euro liquidity (eUr 446 million) 
and evli european High Yield (eUr 362 million).

the funds’ performance was in line with the general 
market development, and the returns for the calendar year 
were still generally higher than long-term average re-
turns. the best-performing equity funds were evli Great-
er russia, which invests in russia (annual return 57.8%) 
and the nordic equity fund evli nordic dividend (+33.6%). 
the best-performing balanced fund was evli Global Multi 
Manager 75 (+11.6%) and the best-performing fixed in-
come fund was evli european High Yield (+15.5%). evli 
europe outperformed its benchmark index by the widest 
margin with a return that was over 10 percent higher than 
european equities. all the funds that were in operation at-
tained positive annual returns.

Mutual fund evli emerging Markets equity, which in-
vests in the emerging equity markets, commenced opera-
tions in 2010. three mutual funds of the former carne-
gie fund Management company ltd were also transferred 
under evli fund Management company’s management. 
due to the merging of carnegie fund Management com-
pany’s operations, the carnegie euro bond, carnegie Mul-
tifund and carnegie optimum+ funds were merged into 
evli funds with corresponding investment strategies. 
Moreover, the evli Money Manager+ money market fund 
was merged with Mutual fund evli euro liquidity.

the majority of the operations of the stockholm branch, 
which was established in spring 2008, were transferred to 
the sister fund management company evli fonder ab. the 
processes between the sister companies were also devel-
oped. the purpose of these is to promote the sale of evli’s 
funds operating in finland to swedish clients.

the Ucits iv directive will be implemented in finnish 
law during the early fall. the directive will bring new pos-
sibilities in the cross-border management and marketing 
of funds, for example. the content of fund prospectuses 
will also be clarified. in concrete terms, the changes will 
be discernible to clients not only as amendments to fund 
rules, but also in a harmonization of prospectuses at the 
eU level. 

Markets 

Markets  
in numbers

1-12/ 
2010

1-12/ 
2009

change  
%

net revenue, M€ 15.8 12.8 23
operating profit / loss, M€ -4.2 -4.7 11
personnel, at the end of period 51 67 -24
Market share (oMX Helsinki), 
eUr volume, % 2.1 3.8
Market share (oMX Helsinki), 
number of trades, % 1.7 3.0

the Markets unit’s net revenue increased by 23 percent on 
the comparison period. 

during the review period, the significant share trans-
actions - those worth over eUr 10 million – executed by 

the unit included pohjola bank plc (eUr 81.5 million), 
alma Media corporation (eUr 50 million), orion corpo-
ration (eUr 33.6 million), stockmann plc (eUr 28.1 mil-
lion), Kemira oyj (eUr 24.9 million) and outokumpu oyj 
(eUr 20.5 million).

evli’s investment research was acknowledged in a 
study carried out by prospera research ab especially for 
the analyses of the construction, banking and insurance, 
real estate, retail and consumer product industries and 
small-cap companies.

the sale of structured investment products offered by 
the Markets unit performed well in 2010. the unit execut-
ed 40 share issues with a total nominal value of approxi-
mately eUr 113 million. sales clearly exceeded the level of 
2009 measured in terms of both the number of products 
sold and the nominal value.

in 2010, the Markets unit launched a comprehensive 
etf product portfolio that comprises etf research, a selec-
tion tool, and the market leading execution of trades. the 
new product was well received on the market and attract-
ed growing interest in the second half of 2010.

Corporate Finance

corporate finance  
in numbers

1-12/ 
2010

1-12/ 
2009

change  
%

net revenue, M€ 9.4 4.8 93
operating profit / loss, M€ 1.5 -2.0 177
personnel, at the end of period 40 43 -7

during 2010 the corporate finance unit acted as advisor 
in 23 disclosed transactions which included a wide variety 
of deals. for example, evli advised fortum in four transac-
tions in russia and Hgcapital in its acquisition of frösun-
da, and it acted as lead manager in stonesoft’s and tech-
nopolis’s directed share issues. client activity remained 
good but careful throughout the year.

Evli’s board of Directors and auditors
the annual General Meeting held on March 2, 2010 re-
elected Henrik andersin, pekka Hietala, Harri-pekka Kau-
konen, timo Korvenpää and thomas thesleff to evli bank 
plc’s board of directors and elected robert ingman, Mikael 
lilius and teuvo salminen as new members. Henrik an-
dersin was chosen as chairman of the board. tapio Hin-
tikka and folke Husell left the board.

the annual General Meeting elected KpMG oy ab, au-
thorized public accountants, as the company’s auditor 
and Marcus tötterman, apa, as the principally respon-
sible auditor.

changes in Evli’s shares, ownership, and group 
structure
the number of evli bank plc’s shares increased by 15,000 
during the second quarter and by 9,000 shares during the 
fourth quarter, due to a share issue.

evli bank acquired the share capital of erik penser 
fonder ab from Urdar ab by a share purchase agreement 
signed on october 19, 2009. the company’s ownership 
was transferred to evli bank on february 3, 2010. 

the subsidiary evli ii asset Management ltd was 
merged with evli bank plc on february 28, 2010.
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the aGM resolved on March 2, 2010 to authorize the 
board of directors to decide on buying back evli shares. a 
maximum of 417,879 shares may be bought back pursu-
ant to the authorization, and they may be bought back in 
one or more lots, provided that after the purchase the to-
tal number of shares in the possession of or held as pledg-
es by the company and its subsidiaries does not exceed ten 
(10) percent of the company’s total shares. the board of 
directors is also authorized to buy back evli shares other 
than in proportion to the shareholders’ holdings, and to 
determine the order of buying back the shares. the au-
thorization will expire eighteen (18) months after the de-
cision of the annual General Meeting.

the board acted on the aGM’s evli share buy-back au-
thorization of March 2, 2010 by buying back 18,250 evli 
shares in the first quarter and 15,000 shares in the fourth 
quarter. the shares were acquired in accordance with 
shareholder agreements through changes in ownership.

at the end of the review period, the company held a 
total of 64,333 evli shares. the total number of shares at 
the end of the review period was 4,202,799 shares. 

there were no changes in the company’s share capital 
during the review period.

Outlook 
the company’s operating environment will be favorable 
in 2011.

Helsinki, february 11, 2011

board of directors

Evli’s share capital and board authorizations 
pursuant to the authorization to acquire evli shares issued 
by the annual General Meeting (aGM) on March 4, 2009, 
the company acquired a total of 4,683 evli shares at the 
start of 2010. the shares were acquired in accordance with 
shareholder agreements through changes in ownership.

the board of directors used the share issue authoriza-
tion granted by the aGM on March 4, 2009 after a deci-
sion was made on february 12, 2010 to offer the compa-
ny’s key employees a total of no more than 35,000 shares, 
of which 15,000 were subscribed during the subscription 
period. the new shares were entered in the trade register 
on april 29, 2010.

evli bank plc’s aGM resolved on March 2, 2010 to au-
thorize the board of directors to decide on issuing shares 
and stock options and/or issuing special rights entitling 
the holder to shares pursuant to chapter 10, section 1, of 
the limited liability companies act in one or more lots in 
such a way that the total number of shares granted on the 
basis of the authorization would be a maximum of three 
hundred and thirteen thousand (313,000) shares. based 
on the authorization, the board of directors is entitled to 
decide on issuing shares and stock options and/or issu-
ing special rights entitling the holder to shares pursuant 
to chapter 10, section 1, of the limited liability compa-
nies act in the same way as a General Meeting could de-
cide on such matters, in every respect. the authorization 
remains valid until further notice, but will expire no later 
than eighteen (18) months after the decision of the Gen-
eral Meeting. 

the board of directors used the share issue authoriza-
tion granted by the aGM on March 2, 2010 after a decision 
was made on december 16, 2010 to offer the company’s 
key employees a total of no more than 12,500 shares, of 
which 9,000 were subscribed during the subscription pe-
riod. the new shares were entered in the trade register 
on december 30, 2010.
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k E Y  F I G U R E S

calculation of key ratios

net revenue from income statement. includes gross returns, deducted 
by interest and commission expenses.

operating profit from income statement

profit for the financial year from income statement

return on equity (roe), % = operating profit/loss - taxes x 100
equity capital and minority interest 
(average of the figures for the beginning and at the end of the year)

return on assets (roa), % = operating profit/loss - taxes x 100
 average total assets (average of the figures for the beginning

and at the end of the year) 

equity / total assets ratio, % = equity capital + appropriations x 100
total assets

 
net interest income + net commission income
+ net income from securities transactions and foreign exchange dealing

expense ratio as earnings = + other operating income x 100
to operating costs administrative expenses + depreciation and impairment charges + other 

1.1.-31.12.2010 1.1.-31.12.2009 1.1.-31.12.2008 1.1.-31.12.2007 1.1.-31.12.2006
net revenue, 1 000€ 59 380 53 758 56 172 79 879 55 776
operating profit, 1 000€ 4 176 5 251 -718 15 884 5 114

% of net revenue 7.0 9.8 -1.3 19.9 9.2
profit for the financial year, 1 000€ 3 407 3 695 -1 134 12 040 5 653

% of net revenue 5.7 6.9 -2.0 15.1 10.1
return on equity (roe), % 5.9 6.3 -1.8 18.5 9.7
return on assets (roa), % 0.5 0.5 -0.1 1.4 0.8
equity-to-assets ratio, % 8.7 8.6 8.7 7.4 8.4
expense ratio (earnings to operating costs) 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.2 1.1
capital adequacy ratio, % 14.8 13.6 14.1 15.3 22.6
personnel, at the end of period 282 281 295 377 295
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c O n S O L I D aT E D  I n c O M E  S TaT E M E n T

1 000 eUros note 1.1.-31.12.2010 1.1.-31.12.2009

interest income 1. 8 172 10 799
interest expenses 2. -5 943 -7 594
nET InTEREST IncOME 2 228 3 205

fee and commission income 3. 59 313 40 625
fee and commission expenses 4. -2 793 -3 360

net income from securities transactions and foreign exchange dealing 5.
net income from securities transactions -439 11 293

net income from foreign exchange dealing 905 1 432
other operating income 6. 165 563
nET REVEnUE 59 380 53 758

administrative expenses
personnel expenses 7. -30 134 -26 336
other administrative expenses 8. -18 263 -16 359

depreciation, amortization and impairment charges 9. -3 682 -2 672
other operating expenses 10. -3 124 -3 131
impairment losses on loans and other receivables 11. 0 -9
OpERaTInG pROFIT/LOSS 4 176 5 251

share of profit or loss of associates 0 1
pROFIT bEFORE IncOME TaX 4 176 5 251

income taxes 12. -770 -1 557
pROFIT/LOSS FOR THE FInancIaL YEaR 3 407 3 695

attributable to
Minority interest 1 050 806
shareholders of parent company 2 357 2 889

pROFIT/LOSS FOR THE FInancIaL YEaR 3 407 3 695

Income and expense recognised directly in equity
foreign currency translation differencies for foreign operations -474 -66
Income and expense recognised directly in equity -474 -66

TOTaL REcOGnISED IncOME aMD EXpEnSES FOR THE pERIOD 2 932 3 629

attributable to
Minority interest 1 050 806
equity holders of parent company 1 882 2 823
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c O n S O L I D aT E D  b a L a n c E  S H E E T

1 000 eUros note 31.12.2010 31.12.2009

aSSETS

cash and cash equivalents 27 512 45 044

loans and other receivables
claims on credit institutions 13. 19 001 17 407
claims on the public and public sector entities 14. 58 090 49 581

loans and other receivables, total 77 092 66 987

financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
debt securities eligible for refinancing with central banks 15. 236 703 240 219
debt securities 15. 38 316 31 525
shares and participations 16. 90 703 129 975
derivative contracts 18. 19 418 13 944

financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, total 385 140 415 663

saleable financial assets
shares and participations 16. 1 896 0

saleable financial assets total 1 896 0

other than financial assets
shares and participations in associates 17. 76 80
intangible assets 19. 14 545 14 565
property, plant and equipment 20. 1 509 1 791
other assets 21. 138 605 140 486
accrued income and prepayments 22. 5 560 5 245
deferred tax assets 23. 823 951

other than financial assets, total 161 118 163 118

TOTaL aSSETS 652 757 690 813
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1 000 eUros note 31.12.2010 31.12.2009

LIabILITIES anD EQUITY

liabilities
financial liabilities at amortized cost

liabilities to credit institutions and central banks 24.
 central banks 0 90 000
 credit institutions 21 161 63 050
liabilities to the public and public sector entities 25.
 deposits 293 359 162 367
 other liabilities 4 921 37 063
debt securities issued to the public 26.
 bonds 51 862 51 004
 other 10 967 6 485

financial liabilities at amortized cost, total 382 269 409 969

financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
derivative contracts and other liabilities held for trading 27. 42 449 46 905

other than financial liabilities
other liabilities 28. 151 258 157 613
accrued expenses and deferred income 29. 19 340 15 354
deferred tax liabilities 30. 629 1 287

other than financial liabilities, total 171 227 174 253

total liabilities 595 945 631 127

eQUitY 32.,33.
share capital 30 194 30 194
share premium fund 1 839 1 839
fund of invested non-restricted equity 10 483 10 009
other reserves 107 107
translation difference -73 401
retained earnings 12 743 15 876
Minority interest 1 520 1 259
total eQUitY 56 812 59 685

TOTaL LIabILITIES anD EQUITY 652 757 690 813
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c O n S O L I D aT E D  S TaT E M E n T  O F  c H a n G E S  I n  E Q U I T Y

1 000 eUros

reserve for
share invested

consolidated statement share premium unrestricted other translation retained Minority total
of changes in equity capital fund equity reserves difference earnings total interests equity
2009
equity at 1.1. 30 194 1 839 7 446 107 467 17 356 57 408 861 58 269
net income recognized direct in equity 0 0 0 0 -66 0 -66 0 -66
profit/loss for the period 0 0 0 0 0 2 889 2 889 806 3 695
Total recognized income
and expenses for the period 0 0 0 0 -66 2 889 2 823 806 3 629
share issue 0 0 2 563 0 0 0 2 563 35 2 598
dividends 0 0 0 0 0 -2 829 -2 829 -448 -3 277
acquisition of own shares 0 0 0 0 0 -1 540 -1 540 0 -1 540
other changes 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6 6
Equity at 31.12. 30 194 1 839 10 009 107 401 15 876 58 426 1 259 59 685

reserve for
share invested

consolidated statement share premium unrestricted other translation retained Minority total
of changes in equity capital fund equity reserves difference earnings total interests equity
2010
equity at 1.1. 30 194 1 839 10 009 107 401 15 876 58 426 1 259 59 685
net income recognized direct in equity 0 0 0 0 -474 0 -474 0 -474
profit/loss for the period 0 0 0 0 0 2 357 2 357 1 050 3 407
Total recognized income
and expenses for the period 0 0 0 0 -474 2 357 1 882 1 050 2 932
share issue 0 0 474 0 0 0 474 0 474
subscription of share capital 0 0 0 0 0 -513 -513 0 -513
dividends 0 0 0 0 0 -4 977 -4 977 -707 -5 684
other changes 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -83 -83
Equity at 31.12. 30 194 1 839 10 483 107 -73 12 743 55 292 1 520 56 812

the translation reserve includes foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries.
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a c Q U I R E D  b U S I n E S S E S

acquisitions 2010
on october 19, 2009 evli bank signed a share purchase agreement by which it acquired the share capital of erik penser fonder ab from Urdar ab, and the company’s
ownership was transferred to evli bank on february 3, 2010. the acquisition enables the strengthening of evli bank’s position on the swedish market, which is
important for evli. evli’s fund selection was augmented by eight swedish equity, hedge and fixed income funds, and its assets under management consequently rose by
approximately eUr 200 million. the transaction also provides evli with better opportunities to develop local know-how in equity and fixed income products.

1 000 eUros

evli fonder ab’s profit for the year is -1 181
of which the profit for the first month is -90
evli fonder ab’s 11-month profit, which is included in the Group’s 2010 income statement  -1 091

the Group’s net revenue for 2010 would have totaled 59 451
and profit would have totaled 3 317
if the company had been incorporated in the consolidated financial statements from the beginning of the financial year.

fair values book values
aSSETS recognized in merger before merger

claims on credit institutions 297 297
debt securities eligible for refinancing with central banks 1 074 1 074
intangible assets 1 1
property, plant and equipment 27 27
accrued income and prepayments 114 114
TOTaL aSSETS 1 513 1 513

LIabILITIES anD EQUITY

liabilities
other liabilities 471 471
accrued expenses and deferred income 169 169
share capital 977 977
other reserves 20 20
retained earnings -123 -123
TOTaL LIabILITIES anD EQUITY 1 513 1 513

net assets 874 874

acquisition price paid in cash 874

Goodwill 0
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acquisitions 2009
on october 7, 2009 evli bank signed a share purchase agreement by which it acquired the asset management operations of carnegie in finland and agreed on a
long-term co-operation agreement on the representation and sales of carnegie’s international funds in finland. the target of the transaction was the entire share
capital of carnegie Kapitalförvaltning finland ab. as a part of the transaction, carnegie fund Management company ltd was also transferred under evli’s ownership
at the same time. no goodwill was generated from this transaction. the ‘other intangible rights’ included in the transaction price, such as client agreements, will be
completely amortized within two to seven years.

one of evli’s strategic areas of focus is institutional asset management and its development the transaction will further strengthen evli’s market
position, especially in the pension foundation and pension fund segments, where carnegie has traditionally been a strong operator. the transaction
raised evli’s net assets under management by approximately eUr 800 million.

1 000 eUros

the carnegie Group’s profit for the year is -293
of which the profit for the first 9 months is -111
the carnagie Group’s 3-month profit, which is included in the Group’s 2009 income statement -181

the Group’s net revenue for 2009 would have totaled 55 588
and profit would have totaled 3 583
if the company had been incorporated in the consolidated financial statements from the beginning of the financial year.

fair values book values
aSSETS recognized in merger before merger

claims on credit institutions 3 594 3 594
debt securities 307 307
intangible assets 4 676 31
property, plant and equipment 11 11
other assets 393 393
accrued income and prepayments 226 226
TOTaL aSSETS 9 208 4 563

LIabILITIES anD EQUITY

liabilities
other liabilities 242 242
accrued expenses and deferred income 2 024 2 024
deferred tax liabilities 1 208 0
total liabilities 3 474 2 266

eQUitY
share capital 1 615 1 615
share premium fund 55 55
retained earnings 738 738
profit for the period -111 -111
total eQUitY 2 297 2 297

TOTaL LIabILITIES anD EQUITY 5 771 4 563

net assets 5 734 2 297

acquisition price paid in cash 5 610
asset transfer tax 90
sale price allocated to acquired agreements -4 610
tax payable 1 208
Goodwill 0
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c O n S O L I D aT E D  S TaT E M E n T  O F  c a S H  F L O W

1 000 eUros 1.1.-31.12.2010 1.1.-31.12.2009

cash flow from operating activities
interest and commission received and proceeds from securities transactions incl. dividends 56 551 100 706
interest and commissions paid -8 241 -12 850
cash payments to employees and suppliers -51 084 -36 373

increase (-) or decrease in operating assets:
net change in trading book assets and liabilities 30 720 71 480
deposits held for regulatory or monetary control purposes 759 -1 429
issue of loan capital 5 340 936
funds advanced to customers -36 742 -63 099

net cash from operating activities before income taxes -2 697 59 371
income taxes -2 252 935

net cash used in operating activities -4 949 60 306

cash flow from investing activities
proceeds from sales of subsidiaries and associates -1 147 -1 905
interest received 2 0
acquisition of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets -3 354 -6 980

net cash used in investing activities -4 499 -8 885

cash flow from financing activities
proceeds from issue of share capital 474 2 598
purchase of own shares -513 -1 540
issue of preference shares by subsidiary undertaking 0 -4
net decrease in other borrowings -7 4
payment of finance lease liabilities -135 -292
dividends paid -5 724 -3 277

net cash from financing activities -5 905 -2 510

net increase in cash and cash equivalents -15 354 48 911

cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 60 508 11 562

effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 176 35

cash and cash equivalents* at end of period 45 330 60 508

* cash and cash equivalents include cash and cash equivalents and claims on credit institutions repayable on demand.
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basic information on Evli Group
evli Bank plc is an independent investment and wealth 
management bank whose clients are institutions, com-
panies and present or future high net worth individuals. 
clients are served by international groups operating in 
two business areas by providing asset management serv-
ices, brokering shares and derivatives, and providing anal-
ysis and advisory services. The evli group operates in five 
countries. it has its head office in finland and also oper-
ates in Sweden and, through its evli Securities subsidiary, 
in estonia and lithuania and through its evli russia ltd 
subsidiary in St. petersburg and Moscow.

The group’s parent company is evli Bank plc. The par-
ent company is domiciled in Helsinki and its registered ad-
dress is aleksanterinkatu 19 a, 00100 Helsinki.

a copy of the consolidated financial statements can 
be obtained from www.evli.com or from the parent com-
pany’s registered office at aleksanterinkatu 19 a, 00100, 
Helsinki. 

accounting policies
Basis for preparation of the consolidated  
financial statements
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared 
in compliance with the ifrSs (international financial re-
porting Standards) and iaSs (international accounting 
Standards) valid at the end of 2010, together with their 
respective Sic (Standing interpretations committee) and 
ifric (international financial reporting interpretations 
committee) interpretations. These standards and inter-
pretations have been approved in accordance with the 
regulation (ec) no. 1606/2002 adopted by the european 
parliament and the council. in addition, finland’s act on 
credit institutions has also been applied in preparing the 
consolidated financial statements. 

assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial 
statements have been measured at historical cost, with 
the exception of available-for-sale financial assets, finan-
cial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or 
loss, derivative financial instruments and hedged items in 
fair value hedges. with respect to business combinations 
occurring before 2005, goodwill is reported as the carry-
ing amount recognized under previous accounting princi-
ples, and this is used as the deemed cost under ifrSs. The 
classification and accounting treatment of these acquisi-
tions have not been restated in preparing the group’s ifrS 
opening balance sheet.

The group has applied the following new or amended 
standards and interpretations from January 1, 2010:
•	 Revised	IFRS	3	Business	Combinations	(effective	for	

annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2009). 
Significant amendments have been made to the 
standard. The amendments expand the scope of ap-
plication	of	IFRS	3,	and	affect	the	amount	of	good-
will recognized in acquisitions and the results of 
business disposals, for example. contingent consid-
eration is measured at fair value, with subsequent 
changes reflected in profit or loss. acquisition costs 
such as costs for the services of experts are recog-
nized as expenses instead of being capitalized. non-

controlling interests may be recognized on a transac-
tion-by-transaction basis either at fair value or as a 
relative proportion of the target’s net assets.

•	 Amended	IAS	27	Consolidated	and	Separate	Financial	
Statements (effective for annual periods beginning 
on or after July 1, 2009). The amendments to the 
standard affect the accounting treatment of partial 
acquisitions and partial disposals. if the parent’s con-
trol is retained, the effects arising from the changes 
in ownership interest in a subsidiary are recognized 
directly in the group’s equity. Such arrangements 
carried out with a minority interest do not generate 
goodwill or income or expenses recognized through 
profit or loss. if control is lost in the subsidiary, any 
residual holding is measured at fair value and recog-
nized in profit or loss. a corresponding accounting 
method is also applied to investments in associates 
and in joint ventures. in the future, the losses of sub-
sidiaries may also be allocated to non-controlling in-
terests, if they exceed the non-controlling interest in 
the equity of the subsidiary. 

•	 IFRIC	17	Distributions	of	Non-cash	Assets	to	Owners	
(effective for annual periods beginning on or after 
July 1, 2009). The interpretation provides instructions 
on how an entity should account for a dividend pay-
able to an owner in the form of non-cash assets. 

•	 Improvements	to	IFRSs	(April	2009)	-	collection	of	
amendments to standards (effective for annual pe-
riods beginning on or after January 1, 2010). The 
amendments apply to 15 standards, and their effects 
vary from standard to standard.
no other standards and interpretations that entered 

into force in 2010 have had an effect on evli’s financial 
statements. 

The financial statements are presented in euro (eur) 
rounded to the nearest thousand.

consolidation principles
Subsidiaries
The consolidated financial statements comprise the fi-
nancial statements of evli Bank plc and all its subsidiar-
ies. entities qualify as subsidiaries if the group has con-
trol. The group obtains control if its shareholding carries 
more than half of the voting rights, or if it otherwise has 
the power to exercise control over the financial and op-
erating policies of the entity so as to obtain benefits from 
its activities.

The group’s internal shareholdings are eliminated by 
using the purchase method of accounting. Subsidiaries 
acquired are consolidated from the date on which control 
is transferred to the group and cease to be consolidated 
from the date that control ceases. 

all intra-group transactions, receivables, liabilities, un-
realized gains and internal distribution of profits are elim-
inated in preparing the consolidated financial statements. 
unrealized losses are not eliminated, if the loss is due to 
impairment of an asset. The profit for the period attributa-
ble to parent company’s equity holders and minority inter-
ests is presented in the profit and loss account, while the 
minority interest in equity is presented separately in the 

a c c O U n T I n G  p O L I c I E S
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balance sheet within equity. The minority interest in cu-
mulative losses is recognized in the consolidated financial 
statements up to the amount of the investment at most.

Mutual funds managed on behalf of clients are not 
consolidated, since the group has no control over them. 

Associates
associates are entities in which the group has significant 
influence. Significant influence is demonstrated when the 
group generally holds in excess of 20 percent of a compa-
ny’s voting rights or when the group otherwise has signif-
icant influence, but not control. associates are consolidat-
ed by using the equity method. unrealized gains between 
the group and associates are eliminated in proportion to 
the group’s ownership interest. an investment in an asso-
ciate includes the goodwill generated by the acquisition.

The subsidiaries and associates included in the con-
solidated financial statements are listed in the notes to 
the financial Statements on page 28.

Translation of items denominated in  
foreign currency
The figures showing the profit/loss and financial position 
of the group’s units are measured in the currency used in 
each unit’s main functional environment (”the functional 
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are pre-
sented in euro, which is the functional and presentation 
currency of the group’s parent company. 

foreign currency transactions are translated into the 
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing 
on the date of the transaction. foreign currency balance 
sheet items are translated into the functional currency at 
the rate prevailing on the balance sheet date. exchange 
rate differences are included in net income from foreign 
exchange.

The income statements of foreign group entities are 
translated into euro at the weighted average rates for the 
period, and the balance sheets at the rates prevailing on 
the balance sheet date. The translation differences result-
ing from the use of different rates for the translation of 
consolidated income for the period in the consolidated 
income statement and balance sheet are recognized in 
other consolidated income items and presented in equity. 
The translation differences arising from the elimination of 
the acquisition cost of foreign subsidiaries and from post-
acquisition cumulative changes in equity items are recog-
nized in other consolidated income items and presented in 
equity. when a subsidiary is disposed of wholly or partly, 
the cumulative translation differences are recognized in 
profit or loss as part of gains or losses from disposal.

property, plant and equipment
Tangible fixed assets are measured at historical cost less 
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Subse-
quent costs are included in the carrying amount of tangi-
ble fixed assets only if it is probable that the future eco-
nomic benefits attributable to the assets will flow to the 
group and that the cost of the assets can be reliably meas-
ured. other repair and maintenance costs are recognized 
as expenses in the period in which they were incurred.

assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over 
their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful lives are 
as follows:

Machinery and equipment: 5 years
iT equipment: 3	years
assets under finance leases: 3-5	years	
renovations of leased premises: term of lease

The residual values and useful lives of assets are reviewed 
at each reporting date and, if necessary, are adjusted to 
reflect changes occurring in expectations of useful life.

The depreciation of an item of property, plant and 
equipment will cease when the tangible fixed asset is clas-
sified as held for sale under ifrS 5 non-current assets 
held for sale and discontinued operations.

gains and losses from the sales or disposals of tan-
gible fixed assets are included in other operating income 
and expenses.

Intangible assets
intangible assets are recognized in the balance sheet only 
if their cost can be reliably measured and if it is prob-
able that the expected future economic benefits attrib-
utable to the assets will flow to the company. intangi-
ble assets with definite useful lives are recognized in the 
balance sheet at historical cost and are amortized in the 
profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over their 
known or estimated useful lives. intangible assets include 
software licenses and other intangible rights whose use-
ful	life	is	3-5	years.

By	a	contract	signed	on	October	7,	2009,	Evli	acquired	
the entire share capital of carnegie asset Management 
and carnegie fund Management in finland. no goodwill 
was generated from this transaction. The ‘other intangi-
ble rights’ included in the transaction price, including cli-
ent agreements, will be completely amortized within two 
to seven years.

Goodwill
goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acqui-
sition (made after 1 January 2005) over the fair value of 
the group’s share of the net identifiable assets and liabili-
ties of the acquired entity at the date of acquisition. The 
goodwill of prior business combinations is reported in ac-
cordance with previous accounting principles and the car-
rying amount is used as the deemed cost. The classifica-
tion and accounting treatment of these acquisitions have 
not been restated in preparing the group’s ifrS opening 
balance sheet.

goodwill is measured at historical cost less cumulative 
impairment losses. goodwill is not amortized, but tested 
annually for impairment. for this purpose, goodwill is al-
located to the cash-generating units, or, if it concerns a 
subsidiary, goodwill is included in the carrying amount of 
the subsidiary in question and the subsidiary forms a cash 
flow-generating unit.

in the group, goodwill is tested by discounting the 
forecast future net cash flows (10 years) using market-
based discount factors. in addition to the cash flows of 
the forecast period, the terminal value is also taken into 
account in measurement.

borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the peri-
od	in	which	they	are	incurred.	Directly	attributable	trans-
action costs of a certain borrowing are included in the 
original amortized cost of the borrowing, and are amor-
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tized as interest expense by using the effective interest 
method or, if necessary, by following a formula whose re-
sult can be deemed as being sufficiently near the sum cal-
culated by using the effective interest method.

Leases
leases of property, plant and equipment in which sub-
stantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are trans-
ferred to the group are classified as finance leases. an 
asset leased under a finance lease is recognized at the in-
ception of the lease at the lower of the fair value of the 
leased asset and the present value of the minimum lease 
payments. an asset leased under a finance lease is depre-
ciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the 
lease term. lease payments are allocated between the in-
terest expense and the reduction of the outstanding liabil-
ity during the lease term to produce a constant periodic 
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability 
for each financial period. finance lease liabilities are in-
cluded in other liabilities.

leases in which substantially all the risks and rewards 
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as 
operating leases. payments made on operating leases are 
recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over 
the lease term.

Impairment
at each reporting date the group assesses whether there 
is any indication that an asset may be impaired. if any 
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the as-
set is estimated. in addition, goodwill and intangible as-
sets not yet available for use are tested for impairment 
annually, regardless of the existence of indication of im-
pairment. The need for impairment is assessed for each 
cash-generating unit which, in the case of the evli group, 
means for each subsidiary.

The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair 
value less costs to sell and its value in use. The value in use 
is determined as the present value of the future net cash 
flows expected to be derived from the said asset or cash-
generating unit. The discount rate used is a pre-tax dis-
count rate that reflects current market assessments of the 
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

an impairment loss is recognized if the carrying 
amount of an asset is higher than its recoverable amount. 
useful life of the asset is reviewed when the impairment 
loss is recognized. an impairment loss is reversed if cir-
cumstances have changed and the recoverable amount 
has changed since the date of recognizing the impair-
ment loss. impairment losses recognized for goodwill are 
not reversed under any circumstances.

Employee benefits
Retirement plans
retirement plans are classified as either defined contribu-
tion plans or defined benefit plans. contributions to de-
fined benefit plans are reflected in profit or loss in the pe-
riod in which they are incurred. The evli group finances all 
its retirement plans as contributions to pension insurance 
companies. The contributions take different countries’ lo-
cal regulations and practices into account. 

in finland, the employees’ statutory pension insurance 
was arranged through evli group’s joint pension fund be-
fore 2010. Since the number of employees covered by the 

joint	pension	fund	had	fallen	below	the	300	person	limit	
for several financial periods, in the fall of 2009 the Board 
of evli group’s joint pension fund resolved jointly with 
the Board of evli Bank plc to transfer pension liabilities to 
an employee pension insurance company. The pension li-
abilities were transferred to the varma employee pension 
company	as	of	December	31,	2009.	The	other	assets	form-
ing part of defined benefit plans that were generated in 
previous financial years have been entirely terminated at 
the time of the transfer.

 
Share-based payments
no separate time value has been calculated for shares 
transferred to and returned from the employees, because 
the share subscription periods are short and, at the ter-
mination of a shareholder’s employment, the company re-
purchases the shares at fair value in accordance with the 
shareholder agreement.

provisions
a provision is recognized when the group has a legal or 
constructive obligation as a result of a past event, and it 
is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation and the group can reli-
ably estimate the amount of the obligation.

Income taxes
The profit and loss account’s tax expense comprises cur-
rent and deferred tax. current tax is calculated on the tax-
able profit for the period determined on the basis of the 
enacted tax rate of each country, adjusted by any taxes 
related to previous periods. 

Deferred	tax	is	generally	calculated	on	all	temporary	
differences between the carrying amount of an asset or 
liability in the balance sheet and its tax base. However, de-
ferred tax assets have been recognized to the extent that 
future taxable income is likely to be generated, against 
which the temporary difference can be used. The largest 
temporary differences arise from the depreciation of tan-
gible fixed assets and from losses verified in taxation. no 
deferred tax is recognized on the undistributed profits of 
subsidiaries to the extent it is probable that the tempo-
rary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. 
Deferred	tax	is	measured	by	using	the	tax	rates	enacted	
by the balance sheet date.

Financial assets and liabilities
group’s financial assets and liabilities are classified in ac-
cordance	with	IAS	39	Financial	Instruments:	Recognition	
and Measurement into the following categories: financial 
assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, 
saleable financial assets, loans and receivables and other 
financial liabilities. The classification is done when a fi-
nancial instrument is recognized initially.

a financial asset is derecognized when the contractual 
rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or 
the group has transferred substantially all the risks and 
rewards of ownership of the financial asset to an exter-
nal party. financial assets and liabilities are recognized 
according to the trade date. a financial liability is dere-
cognized when the obligation specified in the contract 
is discharged.

a financial asset and a financial liability shall be off-
set only when the group has a legally enforceable right 
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to set off the recognized amounts and intends either to 
settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the 
liability simultaneously.

Financial assets
The financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
category is divided into two sub-categories: trading as-
sets, e.g. shares and derivatives, and financial assets des-
ignated as at fair value through profit or loss upon initial 
recognition, e.g. long-term investments in funds, shares, 
bonds and interest rate instruments. Trading assets are 
acquired principally to obtain profit in the short-term 
through changes in market prices.

The category’s assets are measured at fair value and 
the fair value of all of this category’s investments is de-
termined on the basis of prices quoted on active markets, 
i.e. bid and ask quotations on the balance sheet date. in 
cases where price quotations have not been available from 
active markets, the fair value has been determined using 
common valuation models. unquoted instruments such 
as shares and private equity funds are recognized at the 
acquisition price if no better estimate of the fair value is 
available – such as a share’s net asset value, or a valuation 
price published by the management company of a private 
equity fund. unrealized and realized gains and losses aris-
ing from changes in the fair value are recognized in net 
income or loss from securities trading in profit or loss for 
the period in which they were incurred.

financial assets available for sale include long-term 
investments whose fair value cannot be accurately deter-
mined. The investments are recognized at the acquisition 
price if no better estimate of the fair value is available.

loans and receivables comprise non-derivative finan-
cial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are 
not quoted in an active market, and that the group is not 
holding for trading purposes. loans and other receivables 
are initially recognized at fair value inclusive of expenses 
immediately caused by the acquisition. loans and receiva-
bles are measured at amortized cost.

cash and cash equivalents comprise the cash reserves 
and minimum deposit balances required by the Bank of 
finland. repayable-on-demand deposits in credit institu-
tions are also included in cash and cash equivalents in the 
cash flow statement.

Financial liabilities
financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value 
based on the consideration received. Subsequently, all fi-
nancial liabilities are measured at amortized cost, using 
the effective interest rate method. 

The fair value of this category’s liabilities is determined 
principally on the basis of prices quoted on active markets, 
i.e. asking prices quoted on the balance sheet date. finan-
cial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include 
shares that have been sold short and derivatives. 

Trading liabilities arise in situations where securities 
have been sold short. Trading liabilities, i.e. obligations to 
deliver trading securities that the group has sold to third 
parties but does not own (short selling), are measured 
through profit or loss. in securities lending, the securities 
are retained in the original owner’s balance sheet.

liabilities corresponding to asset items acquired 
through a financial leasing agreement are included in 
other liabilities.

Impairment of financial assets
an item of loans and receivables is considered to be im-
paired if objective evidence indicates that one or more 
events have had a negative effect on the estimated future 
cash flows of that asset.

objective evidence of adverse changes in the borrow-
er’s ability to settle its obligations is based on the bor-
rower’s risk rating and group’s experience and manage-
ment’s estimate of the effects of delayed payments on 
future cash flows.

an impairment loss is recognized if the present val-
ue of the estimated future cash flows of the receivable 
discounted at the original effective interest rate is lower 
than the carrying amount of the receivable. The analysis 
takes into account the amount received upon foreclosure 
of collateral. after the impairment the interest expense is 
recognized on the impaired amount.

The impairment is recognized as a credit loss, when the 
debtor has been found insolvent in bankruptcy proceed-
ings, it has closed down or the receivable has been forgiv-
en in a voluntary or statutory loan arrangement.

Derivative financial instruments  
The group has treated derivative financial instruments in 
accordance	with	 IAS	39	Financial	 instruments:	 recogni-
tion	and	measurement.	Derivative	financial	 instruments	
are initially recognized at cost, which corresponds to their 
fair value. Subsequently derivative financial instruments 
are measured at fair value. resulting gains and losses are 
treated in accordance with the purpose of the derivative 
instrument. positive changes in the value of derivative 
contracts are recognized in the balance sheet as assets 
and negative changes as liabilities. 

Hedge accounting is not applied in the company, and 
derivative agreements are classified as held for trading. 
changes in the value of derivatives in this category dur-
ing the year and the realized gains/losses are presented 
in the income statement under net income from securi-
ties transactions. 

Recognition of equity linked notes
The calculatory commission from issued equity linked 
notes, is recognized immediately in the income statement.  
The notes are recognized in the balance sheet at the amor-
tized cost, and the interest component of the loan, which 
is the same as the value of the option, is recognized as a 
separate	debt	item	in	the	group	‘Derivative	contracts	and	
trading liabilities’. The interest expense for the notes is cal-
culated by using the effective interest method. 

Treasury shares
The cost of treasury shares acquired by the parent compa-
ny is deducted from equity. when such shares are sold lat-
er, all of the consideration received is included in equity.

Operating profit
iaS 1 presentation of financial Statements does not 

define the concept of operating profit. The group has de-
fined it as follows: operating profit is the net sum formed 
after interest expenses, commission expenses, employee 
benefits expenses, other administrative expenses, depre-
ciation, amortization and possible impairment losses, and 
other operating expenses are deducted from revenue. all 
other items than the ones mentioned above are presented 
below operating profit in the profit or loss. 
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Revenue recognition principles
income from projects related to corporate finance op-
erations are recognized as profits for the financial year 
in which the project’s end result can be assessed reliably. 
The expenses arising from a project and the loss that can 
be expected are expensed immediately. 

commissions from asset management are accrued 
monthly and are invoiced in arrears in three-, six- or 
twelve-month periods. Securities brokerage events are 
recognized according to the trading date. 

interest income and expenses are calculated by using 
the effective interest method or, if necessary, by follow-
ing a formula whose result can be deemed as being suffi-
ciently near the sum calculated by using the effective in-
terest method. The interest income and expenses related 
to the internal bank’s trading operations are included in 
the profit and loss account item, net income from secu-
rities transactions. in recognizing an impairment loss on 
a contract classified as a financial asset, the recovery of 
interest is continued at the lowered accounting balance 
using the original effective interest rate of the contract. 
if the receipt of interest is unlikely, it is recognized as an 
impairment loss.

accounting policies requiring management’s judge-
ment and key sources of estimation uncertainty 
preparation of the financial statements requires the mak-
ing of certain estimates and assumptions about the future, 
and the actual outcomes may differ from these estimates 
and assumptions. The estimates are based on experience 
and on management’s assumptions that were considered 
reasonable under the circumstances at the time. prepa-
ration of the financial statements also requires, in some 
circumstances, the making of judgements with respect to 
accounting policies. The most significant estimates con-
cern the impairment testing of goodwill.

impairment testing of goodwill is based on the esti-
mated future recoverable net cash flows of the cash gen-
erating units to which goodwill has been allocated, which 
is then compared to these units’ carrying amounts. The 
testing requires making of assumptions concerning vari-
ables such as future prices, the growth rate of returns, 
costs of operations and the discount rate. 

in situations where no external market price is avail-
able for single derivatives that are valued at their fair val-
ue, a price is used, which is theoretically calculated based 
on the generally approved valuation models used in the 
market.

new International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRS)
The following new and amended standards and interpre-
tations have been approved by the iaSB. The group applies 
each standard and interpretation from its effective date 
or, if the effective date is not the first day of the annual 
period, from the beginning of the next annual period.
•	 Revised	IAS	24,	Related	Party	Disclosures	
•	 Amended	IFRIC	14	IAS	19	The	Limit	on	a	Defined	

Benefit asset, Minimum funding requirements and 
their interaction

•	 Amended	IAS	32	Financial	Instruments:	Presentation	
– classification of rights issues

•	 IFRIC	19	Extinguishing	Financial	Liabilities	with	Eq-
uity instruments

•	 IFRS	9	Financial	Instruments	
•	 IFRS	7	Transfers	of	Financial	Assets	–	Disclosures	

 
Segment reporting
The primary segment reporting is based on the business 
segments used in the group’s internal reporting. evli Bank 
plc’s business segments are asset Management, Markets 
and corporate finance. The group also has a number of 
joint functions, which are reported under group opera-
tions. Secondary segment reporting is based on geograph-
ical areas: finland, Sweden and the Baltic region. 

The business segments consist of business units whose 
products, services, earnings logic and profitability are re-
lated, but are different from those of other business seg-
ments. The business risks of the various segments are also 
different. 

inter-segment pricing occurs in arm’s length transac-
tions at fair value. The revenue, expenses, assets and li-
abilities that are deemed as directly attributable to or can 
be allocated on a reasonable basis to a particular busi-
ness area are allocated to that business area. The revenue, 
expenses, investments and capital that are not allocated 
to a particular business area, and the inter-business-area 
eliminations in the group, are reported under group op-
erations. 

asset Management
evli’s asset Management service comprises individualized 
institutional asset management and private Banking serv-
ice, as well as a wide range of mutual funds. institutional 
asset management offers professional total asset man-
agement solutions to e.g. insurance companies, pension 
funds, organizations, municipalities and companies. evli’s 
private Banking is a comprehensive private banking serv-
ice for private individuals with investment assets in excess 
of	EUR	300,000.	Other	private	clients	are	offered	mutual	
funds, electronic banking services and other standardized 
money market products. 

Markets
The operations of the Markets unit are divided into four 
business areas: equity brokerage, derivatives brokerage, 
market making and trading, and investment research. The 
unit’s product range includes also structured products, 
eTfs and realization of management’s share-based pay-
ment arrangements. 

corporate Finance
The corporate finance unit provides advisory services re-
lated to M&a transactions and securities offerings. M&a 
transactions include acquisitions, divestments, mergers 
and demergers. Securities offerings comprise initial pub-
lic offerings, share issues, share sales, convertible loans 
and private placement arrangements.

Group operations
group operations comprise the internal bank (consisting 
of the treasury, payments and credit management), evli 
Bank’s investments, financial administration, risk manage-
ment, iT administration, corporate communications, legal 
affairs, compliance activities, human resources adminis-
tration and internal services.
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S E G M E n T  R E p O R T I n G

asset Group
2010 (1 000 EUROS) Markets corporate Finance Management Operations Unallocated Group

1.1.-31.12.2010 1.1.-31.12.2010 1.1.-31.12.2010 1.1.-31.12.2010 1.1.-31.12.2010
SEGMEnT IncOME STaTEMEnT
revenue

external sales 16 292 9 361 32 504 1 222 0 59 380
inter-segment sales -452 -8 -14 474 0 0

Total revenue 15 840 9 353 32 491 1 696 0 59 380

reSulT
Segment operating expenses -17 090 -6 641 -21 157 -10 315 0 -55 203
corporate expenses -2 972 -1 233 -4 835 9 040 0 0

operating profit -4 222 1 478 6 499 422 0 4 176

Segment income taxes -770 -770
Segment profit/loss after taxes -4 222 1 478 6 499 422 -770 3 407

SEGMEnT baLancE SHEET
Segment assets 233 254 1 753 20 970 430 020
unallocated corporate assets -33 241

consolidated total assets 652 757
Segment liabilites 170 539 574 9 015 432 682
unallocated corporate liabilities -16 865

consolidated total liabilities 595 945

asset group
2009 (1 000 euroS) Markets corporate finance Management operations unallocated group

1.1.-31.12.2009 1.1.-31.12.2009 1.1.-31.12.2009 1.1.-31.12.2009 1.1.-31.12.2009
SEGMEnT IncOME STaTEMEnT
revenue

external sales 13	417 4	851 23	649 12 510 -670 53	757
inter-segment sales -574 -15 -12 601 0 0

Total revenue 12	843 4	836 23	638 13	111 -670 53	757

reSulT
Segment operating expenses -14	785 -5 802 -17	186 -11 520 786 -48	507
corporate expenses -2	799 -1 019 -3	697 7	515 0 0

operating profit -4	741 -1 985 2	755 9 106 116 5 251

Segment income taxes -1	557 -1	557
Segment profit/loss after taxes -4	741 -1 985 2	755 9 106 -1	440 3	695

SEGMEnT baLancE SHEET
Segment assets 185	033 2	437 63	341 448	685
unallocated corporate assets -8	684

consolidated total assets 690	813
Segment liabilities 161	334 1	143 44	496 432	838
unallocated corporate liabilities -8	684

consolidated total liabilities 631	127

group operations comprise the internal Bank, evli Bank’s investments, financial administration, risk management, iT administration, corporate communications,
legal affairs, compliance activities, human resources administration and internal services. Segment operating expenses for group operations in 2009 include profit
sharing to the entire group, unallocated to business units.

no individual customers of evli Bank plc have returns that exceed 10 percent of the total returns.
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2010 (1 000 EUROS) Finland Sweden baltic countries Group
1.1.-31.12.2010 1.1.-31.12.2010 1.1.-31.12.2010 1.1.-31.12.2010

SEGMEnT IncOME STaTEMEnT (GEOGRapHIcaL)
net revenue 48 099 8 911 2 370 59 380

SEGMEnT baLancE SHEET (GEOGRapHIcaL)
Segment assets 628 424 22 298 2 035 652 757

2009 (1000 euroS) finland Sweden Baltic countries group
1.1.-31.12.2009 1.1.-31.12.2009 1.1.-31.12.2009 1.1.-31.12.2009

SEGMEnT IncOME STaTEMEnT (GEOGRapHIcaL)
net revenue 46	169 6	176 1	413 53	758

SEGMEnT baLancE SHEET (GEOGRapHIcaL)
Segment assets 646	646 42	205 1 962 690	813
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The governance of evli Bank plc (hereinafter evli) complies 
with the finnish limited liability companies act, applica-
ble statutory provisions governing the finnish securities 
markets, the regulations of the finnish financial Supervi-
sory authority, the finnish corporate governance code 
issued by the Securities Market association, and the rules 
and	 regulations	of	 the	NASDAQ	OMX	Helsinki.	 	 Further	
information on evli’s risk management system is avail-
able	on	page	23.

General Meeting of Shareholders
The ultimate decision-making power in the company is 
vested in the general Meeting, at which shareholders par-
ticipate in the control and supervision of the company. 
general Meetings are held at least once a year. The annu-
al general Meeting (agM) is held upon completion of the 
company’s financial statements, on a date designated by 
the	Board	of	Directors	no	later	than	the	end	of	June.	Each	
evli share represents one vote at a general Meeting. 

The agM adopts the financial statements and decides 
on the distribution of dividends. The agM also decides on 
the	number	of	members	of	the	Board	of	Directors,	elects	
them and confirms the yearly compensation. in addition 
to	designating	the	company’s	Board	of	Directors,	the	AGM	
has the authority under the limited liability companies 
act to amend the company’s articles of association, in-
crease the company’s share capital or grant an authori-
zation thereto. The agM also decides on the election of 
one or more auditors and the compensation payable to 
them. 

board of Directors and its committees
The agM elects four to eight members to the Board of 
Directors,	who	serve	until	the	end	of	the	following	year´s	
agM. The Board members comprise representatives of 
major shareholders and external, independent members 
who have diverse experience of the business and industry 
in which evli operates. The Board elects a chairman and 
vice chairman from its members. 

The annual general Meeting held on March 2, 2010 re-
elected Henrik andersin, pekka Hietala, Harri-pekka Kau-
konen, Timo Korvenpää and Thomas Thesleff to evli Bank 
Plc’s	Board	of	Directors.	Robert	Ingman,	Mikael	Lilius	and	
Teuvo Salminen were elected as new members as Tap-
io	Hintikka	and	Folke	Husell	 left	 the	Board	of	Directors.	
During	 the	financial	year,	Henrik	Andersin	continued	as	
chairman of the Board and Harri-pekka Kaukonen was 
vice chairman. 

Evli’s	current	Board	of	Directors	consists	of	 industry	
experts and the company’s major shareholders and com-
prises eight members. The majority of the current mem-
bers of the Board are independent of the company. pekka 
Hietala, Harri-pekka Kaukonen, Timo Korvenpää, Mikael 
lilius and Teuvo Salminen are independent of the com-
pany and shareholders.

The	Board	of	Directors	 is	 responsible	for	 looking	af-
ter the company’s administration and appropriate organ-
ization of operations, and ensuring that the supervision 

of the company’s accounting and asset management has 
been arranged suitably. The Board handles all matters that 
are of extensive and fundamental importance for the op-
eration of the company and the entire group. The Board’s 
responsibilities include deciding upon the evli group’s 
business strategy, approving the budget and the princi-
ples for the arrangement of the evli group’s risk manage-
ment and internal control. The Board appoints the ceo 
and the members of the executive group, relieves them 
of their duties and decides upon their salaries and other 
benefits. furthermore, the Board approves the objectives 
of the evli group’s human resources plan and monitors 
their implementation, and decides the criteria for the evli 
group’s compensation system and other extensive mat-
ters that concern the personnel. in accordance with prin-
ciples of good corporate governance, the Board also en-
sures that the company reinforces the corporate values 
applied to its operations.

The Board has approved a written procedure, dated 
December	11,	2006,	defining	the	Board’s	duties	and	meet-
ing practices. The Board carries out an annual internal 
self-evaluation of its activities and working practices. 

The	Board	of	Directors	and	the	CEO	shall	manage	the	
company and the group in a professional manner and in 
accordance with sound and prudent business principles. 
The Board’s obligation is to promote and advance the in-
terests of the company and all its shareholders. 

Evli’s	Board	of	Directors	met	10	times	in	2010.	Board	
members’ average attendance rate at meetings was 89.9 
percent. in accordance with the agM’s decision, the 
Board	members	were	paid	a	compensation	of	EUR	4100	
per month. 

On	December	11,	2006,	the	Board	established	and	ap-
pointed an audit committee and a compensation com-
mittee to prepare matters to be handled by the Board. The 
committees have no independent decision-making power; 
instead, decisions are made by the Board on the basis of 
recommendations and information supplied by the com-
mittees. The committees make regular reports on their ac-
tivities to the Board. 

The audit committee is responsible for advising the 
company’s Board in ensuring that the company has an 
adequate internal control system covering all operations 
and that the company’s risk management has been ar-
ranged appropriately. additionally, the audit committee 
is responsible for overseeing the accuracy and correct-
ness of the company’s financial reporting and preparing 
the proposal on the election of auditors and the audi-
tors’ fees, to be made to the agM. furthermore, the audit 
committee is responsible for ensuring that the company’s 
operations and internal control have been arranged in ac-
cordance with all applicable laws, regulations, good man-
agement and governance practices, as well as for moni-
toring the activity of the internal audit function. The audit 
committee consists of at least three members, which may 
not be part of the company’s management. The commit-
tee is elected by the Board from its members that are in-
dependent of the company. in addition to the commit-
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tee’s regular members the auditors, the ceo, the cfo and 
the internal auditor shall attend the meetings. The mem-
bers of evli’s audit committee are Harri-pekka Kaukonen 
(chairman), robert ingman and Mikael lilius. The com-
mittee meets regularly every quarter. The committee met 
5 times in 2010. The audit committee’s members’ average 
attendance	rate	at	meetings	was	66.7	percent.	

The compensation committee is responsible for ad-
vising the company’s Board in the preparation of mat-
ters related to the management’s employment terms and 
compensation and also the compensation and incentive 
systems for management and personnel. The compensa-
tion committee consists of at least three members, elect-
ed by the Board from its members, and the committee 
shall be chaired by an independent Board member. The 
members of evli’s compensation committee are Timo Ko-
rvenpää (chairman), Henrik andersin, pekka Hietala, Teu-
vo	Salminen	and	Thomas	Thesleff.	The	committee	met	7	
times in 2010. The compensation committee’s members’ 
average	attendance	rate	at	meetings	was	87.5	percent.

During	 the	financial	year	members	of	 the	Board	 re-
ceived no shares or share-based rights as compensation.

chief Executive Officer and Executive Group
Evli’s	Board	of	Directors	appoints	the	CEO,	who	is	respon-
sible for the company’s day-to-day management in com-
pliance with the limited liability companies act and the 
instructions	and	decisions	provided	by	the	Board	of	Direc-
tors. The ceo’s duties include management and supervi-
sion of the group’s business, preparation of matters to be 
handled by the Board and implementation of the Board’s 
decisions. The ceo’s work is guided by a written proce-
dure approved by the Board, effective as of november 1, 
2006.

The company’s ceo is Maunu lehtimäki, M.Sc. (econ.), 
born	 1967.	 In	 2010,	 the	 CEO	was	 paid	 a	 salary	 of	 EUR		
374,424,	 plus	 performance	 bonuses	 and	 other	 benefits	
EUR	93,256,	making	a	total	of	EUR		467,680.	During	the	
financial year the ceo received no shares or share-based 
rights as compensation.

The ceo’s period of notice is six months, and the sever-
ance compensation payable to the ceo in addition to the 
salary for the period of notice corresponds to 12 months’ 
salary.	The	CEO’s	retirement	age	is	63	years.	

The ceo is aided in the company’s operating manage-
ment by evli’s executive group, which is convened by the 
chairman every second week. The executive group sup-
ports the ceo in preparing and executing the strategy, 
coordinating evli’s operations, preparing and executing 
significant or fundamental matters and decisions, and en-
suring internal cooperation and communication. The ex-
ecutive group’s work is guided by a written procedure ap-
proved by the Board, effective as of november 1, 2006.

The company has a reward system covering its entire 
personnel	and	within	the	framework	of	this	at	most	40	
percent of the group’s profit can be distributed to the per-
sonnel. The system also permits restricted profit sharing 
for profit-making businesses even in situations in which 
the evli group has made a loss. The aim of this profit-
linked reward system is above all to ensure the profitable 
growth of the evli group.

The reward system has two parts. The first part of the 
profit distribution is based on the result of each business 
unit. a possible additional part is determined according to 

the system by evli group’s financial result. individual re-
warding is tied to the personal objectives of each evli em-
ployee. each employee has been set qualitative and quan-
titative targets and the achievement of these objectives 
is monitored by team leaders at development discussions 
held twice a year. 

The group’s ceo and members of the executive group 
are also included in the reward system, though their re-
ward is always tied to the financial result of the entire 
group. The rewarding of senior management is always 
dealt with by the compensation committee, which makes 
proposals to the Board regarding rewarding of the ceo 
and each member of the executive group. as the reward-
ing of the management is completely dependent on the 
financial performance of the group, the rewarding ac-
cording to the reward system can vary significantly from 
year to year.

The company’s remuneration system will be renewed 
in the future when new regulations regarding remunera-
tion enter into force in early 2011.

Holdings of board members, the cEO and Executive 
Group members in Evli
at the end of 2010, evli’s current Board members and the 
ceo held, either directly or indirectly through companies 
controlled by them, 58.65 percent of the company’s total 
stock and 59.56 percent of the total votes. Board mem-
bers, the ceo and members of the executive group to-
gether held, either directly or indirectly through compa-
nies controlled by them, a combined 61.88 percent of the 
company’s	total	stock	and	63.35	percent	of	the	votes.	

Internal controls and internal audit
evli’s internal audit reports to the ceo and is independ-
ent of the business functions. its purpose is to audit the 
adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control system 
and the quality of performance in the evli group. evli’s 
Board	of	Directors,	management	and	personnel	can	make	
use of the audits for operational management, control 
and development purposes.

The internal audit reports its findings to evli’s Board 
of	Directors	and	CEO	through	the	Audit	Committee.	The	
Board’s audit committee annually approves the planning 
of the internal audit.

The internal audit follows internal audit guidelines 
and an internationally acknowledged framework of pro-
fessional practices (The institute of internal auditors) and 
corresponding information systems audit standards (in-
formation Systems audit and control association).

evli’s values and policy of transparent, appropriate 
communications support the company’s operational in-
tegrity and high ethical standards. The company’s organi-
zational structure supports the planning, execution, con-
trol and monitoring of business operations in a manner 
that facilitates the achievement of defined objectives. 

evli’s management acts in accordance with high moral 
and ethical standards. The company applies constant vigi-
lance to ensure that its operations comply with all appli-
cable laws and regulations. The responsibility for ensur-
ing compliance rests with each employee, the operating 
management	 and	 the	 Board	 of	 Directors.	 A	 number	 of	
operational rules and regulations have been issued to en-
sure that applicable laws and regulations are complied 
with throughout evli.
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auditors
evli has one auditor. The auditor and a deputy, if any, must 
be a public accountant or auditing firm authorized by the 
finnish central chamber of commerce. if the auditor is an 
auditing firm, no deputy auditor need be elected. The au-
ditor	serves	until	the	end	of	the	following	year´s	AGM.

evli’s auditor is KpMg oy ab, an auditing firm, the 
principally responsible auditor being Marcus Tötterman, 
authorized public accountant. The auditor is responsi-
ble for audit instructions and coordination. The auditor 
issues a statutory audit report to the company’s share-
holders as part of the company’s annual financial state-
ments. The principal function of a statutory audit is to 
ensure that the company’s financial statements provide a 
true and fair view of the company’s financial position and 
performance for each reporting period. The auditor also 
confirms the net asset value of the company’s share on 
a quarterly basis, which is an important part of the com-
pany’s share-based incentive scheme. in 2010, the group 
paid	EUR		276,691,	and	the	parent	company	EUR		173,484,	
in auditor’s fees. additionally, the group paid the auditing 
firm	EUR		65,000		and	the	parent	company	EUR	19,421		
in other fees. These were mainly related to tax counseling 
and the valuation of funds. from time to time, the com-
pany also purchases consultation services from the KpMg 
auditing firm, and the independence of this work from the 
audit	is	assessed	by	the	Board	of	Directors.

Description of the Evli Group’s financial  
reporting process
The	Board	of	Directors	monitors	financial	reporting	and	
the audit committee assists the Board in this work. The 
ceo’s and cfo’s task is to monitor and ensure the quality 
of financial reporting.

The group prepares the annual financial statements 
and	also	a	quarterly	interim	report	(IAS34),	which	is	pub-
lished as a press release. The audit committee meets well 
in advance before the agM to deal with the annual and 
interim reports in detail. reports are submitted to the 
Board on a monthly basis with separate reports relating 
to the business areas.

Operating	under	the	CFO,	the	Finance	Department	pro-
duces and compiles the financial data on the financial 
performance of the individual areas of business in detail 
partly based on the financial data produced by the opera-
tional systems. The accuracy of financial data of separate 
companies and group level data is ensured at different 
daily, weekly and monthly controls and calculation and 
validation measures. 

Data	are	transferred	in	batches	from	the	information	
systems related to operations, which are maintained by 
the business units, to the financial administration’s sys-
tems. various balancing measures are employed to ensure 
that the data transferred from the information systems 
related to operations correspond with the data in the fi-
nancial administration’s systems. The financial adminis-
tration also ensures that all the data are delivered and en-
tered in the accounting records. Securities are revalued for 
accounting in the financial administration’s systems in ac-
cordance	with	IFRS	39	and	the	Group’s	internal	guidelines.	
various balancing mechanisms are employed to ensure 
that all the positions and securities have been transferred 
to the accounting system, and to monitor differences be-
tween the valuation price in the information systems re-
lated to operations and the price used in the account-
ing system, as well as the reasons for these differences. 
The accounting of all the group companies is in the same 
accounting system, and the companies comply with the 
same accounting policies.

The	 purpose	 of	 the	 Finance	 Department’s	 Manage-
ment accounting function is to continuously monitor the 
evli group’s financial performance on both the group and 
business unit levels. The aim is to identify and demon-
strate success factors as well as development areas well 
in advance, thus making it possible to react to these. The 
group controller reports to the executive group and the 
Board	of	Directors	every	month	on	Group-level	perform-
ance and future outlook. performance is evaluated by 
comparing actual figures with the budget and the forecast 
for the rest of the year that is updated every week. each 
business unit has a Business controller who is responsible 
for monitoring and reporting on the performance of the 
unit. The Business controller is responsible for reporting 
on the financial results, sales and activity at least month-
ly and depending on the unit, even daily, to the executive 
group and other concerned parties. in addition to the re-
porting for each business unit, the monitoring is also car-
ried out for the separate countries. country Managers re-
ceive a monthly report on the financial performance of 
the country they represent. in order to ensure the accu-
racy of the data and to avoid any human errors, the inter-
nal accounting reports are balanced each month against 
the group accounting. any discrepancies are documented 
and presented in connection with the reports.
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R I S k  M a n a G E M E n T

Organization of risk management
The evli group defines risk as an event or series of events 
that jeopardize the company’s short-term or long-term 
financial performance. The objective of risk management 
is to support the undisturbed execution of the group’s 
strategy and financial performance. each employee bears 
responsibility for risk management. 

The	Board	of	Directors	of	Evli	Bank	Plc	 sets	 the	 risk	
management policies, corporate risk limits and other gen-
eral guidelines used to organize risk management and in-
ternal controls at evli. The Board has established a risk 
management committee (credalco), which prepares risk-
taking matters for the review of the Board. credalco de-
fines and monitors market, credit and counterparty risks 
and the company’s capital structure. The members during 
the review period were Kaj Blomster (chairman), Tuomas 
Hukka, Johanna lamminen, Maunu lehtimäki and the ex-
pert member: Bengt wahlström. 

Risk management tasks
The following five areas have been defined as ongoing risk 
management tasks:
1.  Making management aware of any risks involving 

short-term or long-term financial exposures.
2.  ensuring that any financial losses related to the risks 

are under control. 
3.		 Preparing	presentations	regarding	risk-taking	and	

hedging decisions in a way that is proportionate to 
evli group’s risk-bearing capacity. 

4.		 Securing	the	commitment	of	employees	to	continu-
ous risk management.

5.  facilitating and ensuring the establishment of 
risk management as part of regular day-to-day 
management.
The managers of the business units are responsible for 

risk management being at a sufficient level in each re-
spective unit. The group risk Management unit oversees 
the group’s operations and compliance with the risk limits 
granted to the business units on a daily basis. The group 
also has an independent internal audit function which is 
responsible for the continuous auditing of the group’s 
functions. The group risk Management unit reports the 
group’s overall risk position to the Board and the group’s 
executive group monthly.

in addition to the above-mentioned duties, the group 
risk Management unit also has various other functions: 
it is tasked with acting as a consultant and developer dur-
ing the development of the units’ risk management proce-
dures and instructions. The group risk Management unit 
also acts as a controller when the units prepare the nec-
essary guidelines and train their staff. The unit’s most im-
portant task is overseeing the units’ compliance with risk 
limits on a daily basis. 

Risk concepts
evli divides risks into three main categories: 
1.  Market risks including liquidity, interest rate, credit 

and price risks
2.  operational risks including legal, compliance and in-

formation security risks
3.		 Business	risks

Market risks
one of evli’s greatest market risks is the price risk of ev-
li’s own investment portfolio and trading stock. The own-
book trading in which evli engages on the equity markets 
is focused on securities quoted on the stock exchanges 
of Helsinki and Stockholm, and on derivatives connected 
to these securities. The investment activity related to the 
equity markets comprises market making operations, tem-
porary investments for brokerage purposes, trading based 
on various trading strategies, and fund and private equity 
investments. evli’s Treasury engages in investment activity 
on the fixed income and currency markets.

The delta-adjusted equity market risk decreased and 
was at a lower level compared with previous years. The eq-
uity risk is measured by using delta-adjusted risk and oth-
er so-called ‘greeks’, as well as by using stress tests. The 
delta-adjusted average of the total equity risk for 2010 
was eur 6.5 million, and at the end of the year eur 6.0 
million (the corresponding figures for 2009 were eur 8 
million	and	EUR	7	million	-	see	notes	16	and	18	 in	the	
notes to the financial Statements). 

The equity-related risks were moderate in relation to 
evli’s risk-bearing capacity. in the end-of-year situation, 
a scenario featuring negative market movements of 20 
percent would have led to a loss of about eur 1.2 mil-
lion	(a	loss	of	EUR	1.4	million	in	2009).	Evli	did	not	have	
significant equity risks related to an individual issuer at 
the end of the year. The Board has set maximum limits 
for investments in single issuers and for the total amount 
of investments in the cee countries and russia. in addi-
tion, illiquid investments and investment commitments 
are monitored regularly.

Only	3.3	percent	of	the	total	value	of	the	investment	
portfolio and the trading stock has been measured us-
ing other than market quotations. information on the 
methods used to measure investment instruments can be 
found under accounting policies in the financial review. 
instruments measured by theoretical means were recog-
nized entirely through profit or loss during the financial 
year, because the maturity periods of theoretically meas-
ured agreements are short and the accounting parameters 
used are based mainly on information from the markets.

The evli Treasury’s currency risk limits have been de-
fined by currency, and currency-specific and aggregate 
stop-loss limits have been linked to them. considering 
the scope of evli’s business, direct currency risks were of 
minor significance in 2010. The fixed income risk of the 
Treasury’s investments was eur 600,000 (eur 1,600,000 
in 2009) assuming that market rates change by one per-
centage point. The interest rate risk is also measured by 
means of change scenarios linked to the shape of the in-
terest rate curve. The shape of the interest rate curve is 
stressed	on	the	assumption	that	the	3-month	rate	would	
rise or fall by one percentage point and that the 5-year 
rate would fall or rise by half a percentage point.

Share-based incentive plans managed for clients on a 
contractual basis were carried out by acquiring equities 
in the client companies in question. There was no equity 
market risk for evli. The credit and counterparty risks aris-
ing from market price fluctuations are monitored sepa-



2 4  |  E V L I  b a n k  p L c  f i n a n c i a l  r e v i e w  2 0 1 0  |  g r o u p

rately. no exposures arise in the financial statements from 
these operations.

in 2010, market risks accounted for 9 percent of evli’s 
total risk-based capital requirement including operation-
al	risks	(42%).

Liquidity risk
The	Board	of	Directors	of	Evli	Bank	Plc	sets	limits	for	the	
use of corporate capital. The proposals for these limits 
are prepared by the group’s risk management committee, 
credalco. evli’s funding policy always assumes the full use 
of these limits. 

evli’s internal bank is responsible for managing the li-
quidity risk. liquidity risk is monitored by the group risk 
Management unit, which reports to credalco and the 
company’s	Board	of	Directors.

The use of funds was primarily related to capital mar-
ket products and lending. capital is also tied by collater-
al for settlement and derivatives trading. The group’s li-
abilities decreased about eur 20 million during the year 
2010	and	were	approximately	EUR	396	million	at	the	turn	
of the year. The immediately available liquidity, consist-
ing of the sum of avista account funds and non-pledged 
securities, was on average about eur 186 million during 
the year. This figure incorporates the use of capital with-
in the group. The bulk of funds were raised for a term 
of less than one year and the primary sources of funds 
were the customer deposits and the issuance of certifi-
cates of deposit. The long-term funding increased slightly 
during	2010	and	was	about	EUR	50	million	(EUR	44	mil-
lion in 2009).

evli’s internal capital adequacy assessment process 
(icaap) found no need for extra capital to cover liquid-
ity risk. 

credit risks
The	Board	of	Directors	has	approved	a	corporation-wide	
strategy for managing credit risks. The strategy defines 
the lending policies and specifies collateral requirements, 
pricing and maturities. The credit risk strategy also de-
fines a classification scheme for customers and loans to 
be used in evli. credit risks are monitored by the group 
risk Management unit, which reports them to the exec-
utive group, to credalco and to the company’s Board of 
Directors.	Credit	risks	occur	primarily	through	lending,	the	
Treasury unit’s investment operations and counterparty 
risk in derivative operations.

The external credit exposure of evli’s banking opera-
tions	was	EUR	58	million	at	the	end	of	the	year	(EUR	49.5	
million at the end of 2009). loans to corporate custom-
ers	accounted	for	7	percent	(8%)	of	this.	The	bank	did	not	
have any unarranged receivables at the end of the finan-
cial year. credalco is authorized to make credit decisions 
within	the	limits	set	by	the	Board	of	Directors.	Lending	is	
focused on asset management customers with collateral 
for security. approximately eur 1,500 in credit losses were 
recognized in 2010

as the Treasury invests primarily in banks and credit 
institutions with high credit ratings (at least a-) and in 
government bonds, the credit risks of its investment port-
folio are moderate. investments are focused on credit in-
stitutions operating in the nordic countries, and govern-
ment	bonds	account	for	approximately	24	percent	of	the	
investment portfolio. limits on investment operations are 
set taking into account the issuer’s credit rating and geo-
graphical location, for example.

Brokerage-related credit risks were minor during the 
year under review. The counterparty risk in derivative op-
erations is managed with daily collateral requirements 
and collateral management for both oTc and standard-
ized contracts. evli limits the size of individual clients’ de-
rivative position and all clients engaging in oTc derivative 
operations must be approved by the risk committee. The 
risks of share brokerage settlement operations were minor 
during the year under review.

in 2010, credit risks accounted for 50 percent of evli’s 
total	 risk-based	capital	 requirement	 (50%	 in	2009).	 The	
capital requirement primarily consists of the risks related 
to lending, the Treasury’s investments and strategic in-
vestments. 

Operational risks
operational risks refer to the direct or indirect risk of fi-
nancial loss caused by shortfalls or failures in internal 
processes, systems, personnel or external factors. legal, 
compliance and information security risks are also con-
sidered to be operational risks. operational risks therefore 
relate to factors such as the company’s management sys-
tem, operating processes, information systems, personnel 
and various external factors or threats. each unit is re-
sponsible for managing their own operational risks. 

evli continuously pays particular attention to the iden-
tification, tracking and management of its operational 
risks. each business unit conducts regular self-evaluations 
of the operational risks related to its products, services, 
personnel, operating processes and systems. evli has pre-
pared specific, corporation-wide guidelines for the iden-
tification, assessment, monitoring and reporting of op-
erational risks.

with the introduction of the capital adequacy require-
ments of the Basel committee on Banking Supervision 
(Basel ii), operational risks are also incorporated in the 
minimum capital requirements of banks. evli applies the 
“Basic indicator approach” to capital adequacy, in which 
the capital requirement for operational risk is based on 
the average gross income of the preceding three years 
multiplied by a factor (0.15) set by the Basel committee. 
using this approach, the capital requirement for opera-
tional risk amounted to eur 8.5 million in 2010. However, 
the capital requirement for operational risk calculated by 
evli’s own internal capital adequacy management process 
was notably smaller.

Processes
Business processes are developed quickly as the group’s 
business expands and grows. evli’s key processes are doc-
umented in process descriptions that can be used as tools 
in employee orientation and systems development. as 
these processes change, the guidelines are updated to re-
flect the new approaches. processes and working instruc-
tions are reviewed and updated regularly. The responsibil-
ity for making the descriptions rests with the head of each 
unit, and compliance is monitored through spot checks 
by the corporate internal audit. Job descriptions and divi-
sions of labor and responsibilities must be so clearly de-
fined in writing that the party responsible for reconcilia-
tions, verifications and approvals is easily identifiable. 

Legal risks
rapid changes in legislation and legal practice create 
challenges for the introduction of different guidelines and 
regulations. implementing the changes often takes a lot of 
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time and effort. The primary responsibility for compliance 
with specific laws and governmental regulations applica-
ble to the different evli companies always rests with the 
line management in charge of the function in question. 
Evli’s	Board	of	Directors	has	appointed	a	Compliance	Of-
ficer, and the executive group has designated a compli-
ance Steering committee whose members represent the 
various business functions. 

Information risk
evli’s operations are based to a large extent on the utiliza-
tion of information technology and telecommunications. 
one of the key objectives of all evli functions is the effi-
cient, error- free and secure processing of information in 
a variety of formats. evli handles and stores large amounts 
of information that is designated as confidential under 
applicable law, guidelines or contracts or otherwise re-
quires special security arrangements. The confidentiality, 
accuracy and usability of such information must be pro-
tected at all times. in order to manage information risk, it 
is necessary to ensure that information systems function 
properly and reliably and to pay particular attention to the 
accuracy of information updated in databases and to the 
management of access rights.

The responsibility for ensuring that information is ac-
curate rests primarily with the users of systems, rather 
than with information technology services such as sys-
tems support or systems development. for this reason, a 
specific ‘information Security policy’ that addresses infor-
mation security and related procedures has been prepared 
for the management of operational risks related to infor-
mation systems and information security. 

Continuity management
evli’s operations may be threatened by external or internal 
crises of a physical or other nature. in crisis situations, an 
organization must:
•	 be	prepared	for	crisis	situations
•	 have	crisis	management	capability
•	 have	prepared	by	means	of	drills.
To ensure operational continuity, each function has a con-
tinuity plan. The purpose of continuity planning is to en-
sure that, in the event of certain threats materializing, it 
is possible to ensure the safety of evli’s customers and 
employees, to protect tangible and intangible property, to 
comply with the law and other regulations, to maintain 
the targeted level of customer service and internal opera-
tions and to preserve the trust of stakeholders. 

each continuity plan will include system recovery 
plans, including guidelines on how to get information 
systems into operating condition in situations of severe 
failure, how to continue operations and how to return op-
erations to normal.

The coordination of continuity planning is the respon-
sibility of the group risk Management unit. 

New products and services
The safe introduction of new products and services re-
quires that, prior to making the final decision on introduc-
tion, assurance has been obtained that all units participat-
ing in the delivery of the product know their respective 
duties and that they have made the function in ques-
tion aware of any operational and other risks involved in 
launching it on the market. The indirect effects of risks 
on the whole group need to be assessed with particular 
care. Specific guidelines are in use in the evli group con-

cerning the approval and introduction of new products 
and services. 

Outsourcing of operations
The delegation of business operations to agents or oth-
er outsourcing of operations does not relieve evli of its 
responsibilities or obligations. evli has adopted guide-
lines regarding the principles that must be complied with 
when evli’s business operations are delegated outside the 
group. These guidelines ensure that the management and 
monitoring of operational risks relating to the outsourced 
functions is arranged in the manner required by the fi-
nancial Supervisory authority. 

Reporting
The group risk Management unit is responsible for cor-
porate- wide risk reporting, which consists of both nu-
merical and written reports. The group risk Management 
reports include at least the following:
1.		 Daily	report	to	the	Executive	Group	on	the	utilization	

of corporate limits and any observations arising from 
risk monitoring

2.  Monthly numerical and narrative risk management 
report and summary of customer exposure and limit 
utilization to credalco

3.		 Monthly	report	to	the	Board	of	Directors	and	the	
executive group

4.		 Annual	operational	risk	assessment	report	to	the	
Executive	Group	and	the	Board	of	Directors

Managing capital adequacy
an essential element of the Basel ii capital adequacy regu-
lations is compliance with the principles of pillar 2. pillar 2 
considers the risks outside the measurement of minimum 
capital requirements and all their dimensions and the re-
sidual risks outside this measurement. The capital adequa-
cy regulation is based on the principle that the quantity, 
quality and allocation of the bank’s own assets must be 
continuously sufficient to cover the material risks apply-
ing to the supervised party. it is not possible, however, to 
use capital to replace deficiencies in the qualitative as-
pects of risk bearing capacity. Broadly speaking, risk bear-
ing capacity includes not only capital and profitability, but 
also reliable management, well-organized internal control 
and risk management. evli’s internal capital adequacy as-
sessment process (icaap) has been developed in line with 
the requirements of Basel ii.

Evli	Bank’s	Board	of	Directors	has	set	a	target	of	main-
taining	at	least	a	13	percent	BIS	capital	adequacy.	This	tar-
get is monitored by means of the group risk Management 
Unit’s	monthly	reports	to	the	Board	of	Directors,	the	Exec-
utive group and credalco. evli’s internal capital adequacy 
management calculations are updated as deemed neces-
sary by the management. However, this updating takes 
place at least once a year as part of strategic planning 
during the budgetary process.

no financial losses were sustained in 2010 as a result 
of misuse of information systems or disturbances affect-
ing them. in addition to arranging normal asset protec-
tion, evli has comprehensive insurance coverage for lia-
bility	and	criminal	losses.	Due	to	the	Group’s	high	capital	
adequacy ratio and good risk bearing capacity, evli applies 
a relatively high deductible in its insurance policies. 
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c a p I Ta L  a D E Q U a c Y  O F  T H E  G R O U p

1.1.2010- 1.1.2009– 1.1.2008– 1.1.2007– 1.1.2006–
31.12.2010 31.12.2009 31.12.2008 31.12.2007 31.12.2006

Own funds, M€* 37.5 40	.9 43.6 52.3 48	.1
risk-weighted receivables, investments and off-balance sheet obligations, M€ 148 .1 182.6 189.1 223.7 212.7
own funds to cover operational risk, M€ 8.5 9.5 9.6 9.5 0.0
Capital	adequacy	ratio,	%	 14.8 13.6 14.1 15.3 22.6
Evli	Bank	Plc's	capital	adequacy	ratio,	% 17.2 17.5 17.7 17.3 22.5
own funds surplus M€ 17.2 16.8 18.9 24.9 31.1
own funds in relation to the minimum capital requirement 1.9 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.8

* including only tier 1 capital.

Figures	for	the	years	2007-2010	have	been	calculated	in	accordance	with	Basel	II.	Correspondingly,	figures	for	2006	have	been	calculated	in	accordance	with	Basel	I.

Own funds 2010 2009
own funds include share capital, funds and profits for the year. These items are not subject to special terms.

Total tier 1 capital, M€:
 equity 30.2 30.2
 funds total 25.1 28.2
 Minority interest 1.5 1.3
	 Decreases:
  intangible assets 13.7 13.4
  other decreases 5.6 5.5
 Total tier 1 capital 37.5 40.9

evli Bank has no tier 2 capital.

capital adequacy management and minimum own funds risk-weighted
See section ‘capital adequacy management’. Min. requirement value

  claims from credit institutions and investment firms 4.1 50.6
  investments in mutual funds 0.6 7.7
  claims secured with property 0.2 2.5
  claims from corporate customers 0.5 6.5
  items with high risk, as defined by the authorities 0.6 7.4
  other items 4.1 51.7
  Total 10.1 126.4

Minimum amount of own funds, market risk, M€ 1.7 21.7
 risk-weighted receivables, investments and off-balance sheet obligations, total 11.9 148.1

Minimum amount of own funds, operational risk, M€ 8.5 105.9
Total 20.3 254.0

Risk management principles by risk area
 See section ‘risk management’.
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General information on credit and dilution risk
The definitions used in accounting for maturation and impairment are presented in the financial statements.
loans are entered as non-performing if payment of interest or instalments is overdue by at least 90 days.
lending is focused on finnish asset management customers.
value adjustments of approximately eur 1,500 concerning loans were made during the year.

credit risk (standard method)
The credit rating institutions used in the standard method are Standard & poor’s and Moody’s. 

Techniques to reduce credit risk
The valuation of collateral uses risk committee-approved collateral factors that
are based on the collateral’s realizability and susceptibility to changes in value. 
principal real collateral types used in capital adequacy calculation:
 residential property collateral
 cash deposits
liabilities hedged with approved collateral, M€ 2010 2009
 Mortgages 7.2 5.9
 other credits 10.3 12.7
 counterparty exposure of oTc derivatives 3.1 1.9

credit risk (counterparty risk) M€
positive fair value of oTc derivatives in the financial statement 15.7 10.4
 The derivatives comprise equity, currency and fixed income derivatives
collateral reducing counterparty risk in capital adequacy calculations 1.9
after the collateral-reducing effect the credit counter-value of derivatives totaled 19.4

Market risk
Minimun capital adequacy requirement, trading stock, M€:

position risk 1.0 2.1
Minimun capital adequacy requirement for the total currency risk of all operations, M€ 0.8 0.3

Total 1.7 2.5

Operational risk
The method applied is the basic method.

Shares outside the trading book
Shares and participations in the banking book are measured at fair value through profit or loss and as avalaible-for sale investments.
The	value	of	the	investments	in	the	financial	statements	was	EUR	35.7	million,	which	is	the	fair	value	of	the	investments.
The listed shares are related to the equity incentive schemes.

investment types, M€:
private equity funds 4.9 4.8
unlisted shares 2.2 1.3
Mutual funds 4.1 30.6
listed shares 24.5 19.0

Total 35.7 55.7

private equity funds and mutual funds have been valued by applying the last known fair value from the funds’ management companies. 
unlisted shares have been valued to purchase price unless a better opinion of the fair value is available, like the net asset value of the share.
During	the	year,	the	realized	capital	gains	from	the	investments	was	net	EUR	1.1	million.

Interest rates risk of items outside the trading book
See section ‘Market risks’.
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companies included in the consolidated accounts
evli Bank plc, Helsinki (parent company)
Evli	Life	Ltd,	Helsinki	(100%)
Evli	Fund	Management	Company	Ltd,	Helsinki	(100%)	
Evli	Property	Investments	Ltd,	Helsinki	(100%)
	 EPI	Russia	Partners	I	Ltd,	Helsinki	(50%)
	 	 EPI	Rus	Partners	OOO,	St.	Petersburg	(100%)
	 EPI	Healthcare	Partners	Oy,	Helsinki	(100%)
	 EPI	Russia	Partners	II	Ltd,	Helsinki	(100%)
Evli	Alexander	Management	Oy,	Helsinki	(45%)*
Evli	Russia	Ltd	(54,90	%)
	 OOO	Evli	St.	Petersburg,	St	Petersburg	(100	%)
	 OOO	Evli	Moscow,	Moscow	(100%)
Evli	Securities	AS,	Tallinn	(100	%)
	 Baltic	SME	Management	B.V.,	Amsterdam	(33.3%)
	 BIF	Management	Ltd,	Jersey	(10%)
Evli	Fonder	AB,	Stockholm	(100%)

The group's parent company is evli Bank plc, domiciled in Helsinki.
The consolidated accounts are available on the internet at www.evli.com
or at the address aleksanterinkatu 19 a, p.o. Box 1081, fi-00101 Helsinki, finland.

all subsidiaries and branch offices are included in the consolidated accounts.
The pooling method has not been used in the consolidation of subsidiaries.
all subsidiaries included in the consolidated accounts have the same financial year.
* The company is evli’s associated company: according to the shareholders’ agreement evli is the controlling company.
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1 000 euroS 2010 2009

1. Interest income
at fair value through profit or loss

Debt securities 6 944 9 121
Derivative contracts 0 75

interest income from other loans and claims
claims on credit institutions 282 237
claims on the public and public sector entities 942 1 356
other interest income 4 10

interest income, total 8 172 10 799

2. Interest expenses
at fair value through profit or loss

Derivative contracts and trading liabilities -14 -16
interest expenses from other borrowing

liabilities to the public, public sector entities and credit institutions -3 452 -4 943
Debt securities issued to the public -2 472 -2 632
other interest expenses -5 -3

interest expenses, total -5 943 -7 594

3. commission income
credit related fees and commissions 18 13
insurance brokerage 282 41
advisory services 10 033 4 965
Securities brokerage 13 733 9 871
Mutual funds 25 678 16 997
asset management 4 771 4 029
custody services 2 678 2 276
other operations 2 121 2 433
commission income, total 59 313 40 625

4. commission expenses
Trading fees paid to stock exchanges -1 084 -1 218
other -1 710 -2 142
commission expenses, total -2 793 -3 360

5. net income from securities transactions and foreign exchange dealing
income from equity investments

Dividends from financial assets classified as held for trading 536 825
Dividends from group companies -4 -459

income from equity investments, total 532 365

financial assets held for trading 1 878 3 842
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss -2 850 7 085
net income from securities transactions, total -971 10 927

Gains and losses changes in
on sales fair value Total Total

Debt securities -4 702 -656 -5 358 3 626
Shares and derivative contracts 8 349 -3 962 4 387 7 301
net income from securities transactions, total 3 647 -4 618 -971 10 927
net income from foreign exchange operations 905 1 432
net income from securities transactions and foreign exchange operations, total -66 12 359

n OT E S  TO  I n c O M E  S TaT E M E n T
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1 000 euroS 2010 2009

6. Other operating income
rental income 44 103
gain on sale of owner-occupied investment properties 3 5
other income 118 455
other operating income, total 165 563

1 000 euroS 2010 2009

7. Employee benefits 
wages and salaries -23 174 -20 490
- of which bonuses -3 214 -2 601
other social security costs -2 365 -1 864
-of which relating to bonuses -186 -110
pension expenses -4 596 -3 983
- of which relating to bonuses -507 -314
-defined benefit plans 0 -640
-defined contribution plans -4 596 -3 343
employee benefits, total -30 134 -26 336

number of personnel during the period, average 275 278

 number of personnel at the end of the period 282 281

Employees by business segment at the end of the period
Markets 46 69
corporate finance 45 45
asset management 96 99
administration and other 95 68
Total 282 281

Employees by geographic market at the end of the period
finland 211 203
Sweden 26 32
estonia 16 14
lithuania 11 11
russia 18 21
Total 282 281

8. Other administrative expenses
office maintenance expenses -681 -567
office expenses -1 448 -1 442

 Telephone and postage expenses -736 -684
 information expenses -2 810 -2 586

iT related expenses -4 920 -4 271
Business expenses -400 -275
Travel expenses -953 -872
car costs -232 -252
other human resources related expenses -1 088 -706
Marketing expenses -1 545 -1 525
Banking and custodian expenses -730 -575
external services fees -2 721 -2 603
other administrative expenses, total -18 263 -16 359
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1 000 euroS 2010 2009

9. Depreciation, amortization and impairment losses
Depreciation and amortization
applications and software -1 771 -1 449
other intangible assets -1 087 -272
leasehold improvements -74 -104
assets acquired under finance leases -226 -266
equipment and furniture -523 -582
Depreciation, amortization and impaiment losses, total -3 682 -2 672

10. Other operating expenses
Supervision expenses -215 -262
rental expenses -2 772 -2 717
loss on sale of owned properties, plant and equipment -2 -15
other expenses -135 -136
other operating expenses, total -3 124 -3 131

11. Impairment losses on loans and other commitments and other financial assets 
claims on the public and public sector entities

actual impairment losses 2 0
reversals of impairment losses -1 2
individually impairment losses 0 -11

impairment losses on loans and other commitments, total 0 -9

12. Income taxes
current tax expense -1 413 -2 030
Taxes from previous years -43 0
Deferred taxes 736 458
other taxes -51 16
income taxes, total -770 -1 557

reconciliation between the income tax expense recognized in the income statement
and the taxes calculated using the parent company’s domestic tax rate:

profit/loss before taxes, finland 4 972 6 558
profit/loss before taxes, other countries -795 -1 307
profit/loss before taxes, total 4 176 5 251

Tax at domestic tax rate 1 086 1 365
effect of foreign subsidiaries' differing tax rates -50 340
Tax at source paid abroad -9 -21
income not subject to tax -61 136
expenses not deductible for tax purposes 54 -137
adjustment to depreciation on property, plant and equipment previously not deducted in taxation -73 -110
change in other deferred tax assets -178 0
other taxes 0 -16
income tax charge in the consolidated income statement 770 1 557
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13. claims on credit institutions
repayable on demand

Domestic credit institutions 14 191 7 255
 foreign credit institutions 3 627 8 209

repayable on demand, total 17 818 15 464
other than repayable on demand

central banks
foreign credit institutions 1 183 1 943

other than repayable on demand, total 1 183 1 943

claims on credit institutions, total 19 001 17 407

14. claims on the public and public sector entities by sector
repayable on demand

foreign countries 0 1
repayable on demand, total 0 1
other than repayable on demand

enterprises and housing associations 3 493 2 481
public corporations
Households 46 528 38 606
foreign countries 8 068 8 492

other than repayable on demand, total 58 090 49 580

claims on the public and public sector entities by sector, total 58 090 49 581

15. Debt securities

issued by public corporations publicly quoted Other Total Total
government bonds held for trading 66 154 0 66 154 21 036
issued by public corporations, total 66 154 0 66 154 21 036

issued by other than public corporations 
other than held to trading 0 4
Held for trading

Banks' certificates of deposit 0 32 900 32 900 20 767
Bonds issued by banks 64 059 111 905 175 964 229 670
other debt securities 0 0 0 267

issued by other than public corporations, total 64 059 144 806 208 865 250 708
Debt securities, total 275 019 271 744

Debt securities by balance sheet category
Debt securities eligible for refinancing with central banks

on public sector entities 66 154 21 036
other 170 549 219 183

Debt securities
on public sector entities 0 4
other 38 316 31 521

Total 275 019 271 744



3 3  |  E V L I  b a n k  p L c  f i n a n c i a l  r e v i e w  2 0 1 0  |  g r o u p

1 000 euroS 2010 2009

16. Shares and participations
fair valued through profit or loss 2010

Balance sheet category publicly quoted Other Total
Shares and participations

available for sale 0 1 896 1 896
valued at fair value throuh profit or loss
 Held for trading 53 941 2 984 56 925
 other 28 554 5 224 33 778

Shares and participations, total 82 495 10 104 92 599

2009

Balance sheet category publicly quoted other Total
Shares and participations

valued at fair value throuh profit or loss
 Held for trading 74 209 88 74 297
 other 49 589 6 089 55 678

Shares and participations, total 123 798 6 177 129 975

net risk position is described on page 23.
2010 2009

17. Shares and participations in associates and joint ventures
at the beginning of the period 80 599
Share of profit/loss -4 -459
Disposals 0 -60
at the end of the period 76 80

Shares and participations in associates contain the fair value of
the indirectly owned funds by the companies  

Holdings in consolidated associated compnaies bIF baltic SME
company Management Ltd Management b.V

Domicile Jersey netherlands
assets 8 11
liabilities 0 1
revenue 29 29
profit/loss 0 0
ownership (%) 10% 33,33%
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18. Derivative contracts

Overall effect of risks associated with derivative contracts nominal value of underlying 2010 2010
 Remaining maturity

Held for trading Less than 1 year 1-5 years Fair value (+/-) aSSETS LIabILITIES
interest rate derivatives

futures 74 900 0 0 0 0
currency-linked derivatives 342 884 0 -10 4 749 4 759
equity-linked derivatives

futures 28 251 0 -504 308 812
options bought 37 286 59 157 13 375 13 952 578
Options sold 61 912 62 322 -14 919 408 15 327

other derivatives
Held for trading, total 545 233 121 479 -2 058 19 418 21 476

Derivative contracts, total 545 233 121 479 -2 058 19 418 21 476

Overall effect of risks associated with derivative contracts 2009 2009

Held for trading
interest rate derivatives

futures 75 700 0 0 0 0
currency-linked derivatives 95 237 0 6 976 971
equity-linked derivatives

futures 24 554 0 -49 535 584
Bought 92 882 51 248 11 323 12 005 682
Sold 47 502 55 573 -10 994 428 11 422

other derivatives
Held for trading, total 335 874 106 821 285 13 944 13 659

Derivative contracts, total 335 874 106 821 285 13 944 13 659

equity derivatives held for trading, and other liabilities held for trading (notes 18 and 27) hedge the equity delta risk for shares
and participations in the trading book (note 16). The delta-adjusted equity risk was at the end of 2010 eur 5.9 million, 
including shares and participations in the banking book.

The interest rate derivatives hedge the interest rate risk in assets and liabilities in the balance sheet. 
currency derivatives comprise commitments made against clients and the associated hedges, and contracts made to hedge currency risk in the balance sheet.
equity derivatives in the banking book hedge the equity risk in equity-linked bonds issued to the public.
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19. Intangible assets

Goodwill
cost at 1.1. 4 468 4 468
increases 195 0
cost at 31.12. 4 663 4 468
Book value at 31.12. 4 663 4 468

Software or projects in progress
cost at 1.1. 535 945
increases 2 466 946
Decreases -1 130 -1 356
cost at 31.12. 1 871 535
Book value at 31.12. 1 871 535

applications and software
cost at 1.1. 12 172 9 743
exchange difference 9 4
increases 1 333 2 441
Decreases -56 -15
cost at 31.12. 13 458 12 172
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses at 1.1. -6 937 -5 502
exchange difference -7 -1
amortisation for the period -1 765 -1 449
accumulated amortisation in respect of decreases 24 15
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses at 31.12. -8 686 -6 937
Book value at 31.12. 4 772 5 235

Other intangible assets
cost at 1.1. 4 598 0
increases 0 4 598
Decreases -453 0
cost at 31.12. 4 145 4 598
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses at 1.1. -272 0
amortisation for the period -906 -272
accumulated depreciation in respect of decreases 272 0
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses at 31.12. -906 -272
Book value at 31.12. 3 239 4 326

Intangible assets, total at 31.12. 14 545 14 565

book value of intangible assets at 31.12. 14 545 14 565

The testing of goodwill did not give reason to impair goodwill. The goodwill assessments were based on the cash flow model in use, in which the confirmed
budgets for 2011 and eight-year cash flow forecasts were used as a template. These eight-year cash flow forecasts are commonly used in corporate finance
unit’s estimates. The permanent growth after the forecast period was estimated to be approximately 2-3 percent, and the weighted average cost of
capital was estimated to be approximately 16 percent

However, no moderately estimated change of any of the key variables used in the calculation would lead to a situation in which
the book value of an acquired business would exceed its value-in-use. Therefore, it is the management’s understanding that
there is no need for recognitions of impairment.
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20. property, plant and equipment

Equipment and furniture
cost at 1.1. 6 164 6 218
exchange difference 113 29
increases 278 93
Decreases -745 -175
cost at 31.12. 5 811 6 164
accumulated depreciation at 1.1. -5 413 -5 048
exchange difference -68 -18
Depreciation for the period -522 -573
Translation difference from depreciation for the period -1 -1
accumulated depreciation in respect of decreases 732 226
accumulated depreciation 31.12. -5 271 -5 413
Book value at 31.12. 540 752

assets acquired under finance leases
cost at 1.1. 1 983 1 875
increases 230 107
cost at 31.12. 2 213 1 983
accumulated depreciation at 1.1. -1 705 -1 440
Depreciation for the period -228 -265
accumulated depreciation at 31.12. -1 933 -1 705
Book value at 31.12. 280 278

property, plant, and equipment, total 31.12. 820 1 029

Leasehold improvements
cost at 1.1. 3 346 3 416
Transfer between balance items 3 1
Decreases -6 -71
cost at 31.12. 3 344 3 346
accumulated depreciation at 1.1. -3 175 -3 142
Transfer between balance items 0 -1
Depreciation for the period -77 -104
accumulated depreciation in respect of decreases 6 71
accumulated depreciation at 31.12. -3 246 -3 175
Book value at 31.12. 98 171

Other tangible assets
cost at 1.1. 591 584
increases 0 7
cost at 31.12. 591 591
Book value at 31.12. 591 591

property, plant and equipment, total at 31.12. 1 509 1 791

book value of tangible assets at 31.12. 1 509 1 791
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21. Other assets
Securities sale receivables 14 142 20 584
commission receivables 7 428 6 212
Securities broking receivables 116 865 113 434
other receivables 169 257
other assets total 138 605 140 486

in finland, the personnel’s statutory pension cover has been arranged
through evli group’s joint pension fund until December 31, 2009. 0 165
pension receivables are included in other receivables. 

22. accrued income and prepayments
interest 2 447 2 559
Taxes 149 79
Staff-related 717 471
other items 2 248 2 136
accrued income and prepayments total 5 560 5 245

23. Deferred tax assets
Due to timing differences 479 538
other temporary differences

from tax losses carried forward 344 413
Deferred tax assets total 823 951

Deferred tax assets result from timing differences in fixed asset depreciation. 

24. Liabilities to credit institutions and central banks
central banks 0 90 000
credit institutions

repayable on demand 0 27 000
others 21 161 36 050

liabilities to credit institutions and central banks, total 21 161 153 050

25. Liabilities to the public and public sector entities
Deposits

repayable on demand 266 713 143 173
other than repayable on demand 26 645 19 194

other liabilities
other than repayable on demand 4 920 37 062

liabilities to the public and public sector entities, total 298 279 199 430

26. Debt securities issued to the public
certificate of deposits 10 967 6 485
Bonds 51 862 51 004
Debt securities issued to the public, total 62 829 57 489

Breakdown by maturity less than 3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years
Debt securities issued to the public 6 492 7 400 48 936

changes in bonds issued to the public
issues 24 426 30 788
repurchases 18 847 21 936
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27. Derivative contracts and other liabilities held for trading
Derivative contracts 21 476 13 659
Due to short selling 20 973 33 246
Derivative contracts and other liabilities held for trading, total 42 449 46 905

27. breakdown of other liabilities
Securities broking liabilities 111 936 118 102
Securities purchase liabilities 24 067 20 998
finance lease payables 288 289
income tax payable 30 13
personnel related 854 810
other short-term liabilities 13 950 17 194
vaT payable 134 207
other liabilities, total 151 258 157 613

29. accrued expenses and deferred income
interest 1 897 1 399
Tax payables 767 1 629
personnel related 7 967 6 514
other accrued expenses 8 709 5 811
accrued expenses and deferred income, total 19 340 15 354

30. Deferred tax liabilities
Due to timing differences 629 1 287
Deferred tax liability, total 629 1 287

31. Own shares held by the credit institution
The credit institution holds own shares 64 333
The cost of own shares is eur 512 602
The cost of purchase has been deducted from unrestricted equity.

32. Share capital, parent company
The company has one series of shares outstanding and each share represents one vote.
Total number of shares is 4 202 799
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33. changes in the share capital, board authorizations and option programs

number of fund of invested
number of own outstanding Share premium non-restricted

shares held shares Share capital fund equity

1.1.2009 142 976 4 073 853 30 194 1 839 7 466
aquisition of own shares 2008 authorization 32 454 -32 454 0 0 0
aquisition of own shares 2009 authorization 75 300 -75 300 0 0 0
nullification of own shares 2009 decision -224 330 0 0 0 0
Share issue 2009 authorization 0 186 300 0 0 2 547

31.12.2009 26 400 4 152 399 30 194 1 839 10 013
Total number of shares 4 178 799

1.1.2010 26 400 4 152 399 30 194
aquisition of own shares 2009 authorization 4 683 -4 683 0
aquisition of own shares 2010 authorization 33 250 -33 250 0
Share issue 2009 authorization 0 15 000 0
Share issue 2010 authorization 0 9 000 0

31.12.2010 64 333 4 138 466 30 194
Total number of shares 4 202 799

Share premium fund
The share premium fund comprises the following items: the amount exceeding the counter-book value of the share paid for shares prior to September 1, 2006
in a new issue; the amount paid for a subscription right based on an option right; gain on sale of the company’s own shares; and the amount by which the
share capital is lowered and which is not used to cover an adopted loss, transferred to a fund to be used in accordance with the decision of the general
meeting of the shareholders or distributed to the shareholders. 

fund of invested non-restricted equity
The fund of invested non-restricted equity includes the proceeds from the disposals of own shares received after September 1, 2006.

34. Largest shareholders and share ownership breakdown
Share %

oy prandium ab (Thomas Thesleff and his family) 950 820 22.62 
oy Scripofilum ab (Henrik andersin) 950 820 22.62 
oy fincorp ab (roger Kempe) 579 945 13.80 
ingman group oy ab 465 000 11.06 
lehtimäki Maunu 98 432 2.34 
Tallberg claes 92 439 2.20 
Hollfast John 82 080 1.95 
Hartikainen raimo 41 504 0.99 
Jousimies panu 39 768 0.95 
von Bonsdorff petter 39 416 0.94 

3 340 224 79.48 
others 862 575 20.52 
Total 4 202 799 100.00 
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35. Maturities of financial assets and financial liabilities of credit institution 
Due to the nature of the business, predicting future cash flows is difficult. cash flows from derivatives are especially difficult to predict. 
The maturities of derivatives are provided in note 17; the maturities are as agreed, which does not fully conform to real cash flows.

less than 3-12
2010 3 months months 1-5 years 5-10 years Total
loans and other claims

claims on credit institutions 19 001 0 0 0 19 001
claims on the public and public sector entities 4 390 12 574 40 376 750 58 090

financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Debt securities eligible for refinancing with central banks 1 336 0 235 367 0 236 703
Debt securities 2 998 31 858 3 460 0 38 316

financial liabilities at amortized cost
liabilities to credit institutions 18 011 1 650 1 500 0 21 161
liabilities to the public and public sector entities 291 322 6 871 86 0 298 279
Debt securities issued to the public 6 492 7 400 48 936 0 62 829

2009
loans and other claims

claims on credit institutions 17 407 0 0 0 17 407
claims on the public and public sector entities 4 729 11 963 31 781 1 107 49 581

financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Debt securities eligible for refinancing with central banks 4 008 54 090 171 367 10 754 240 219
Debt securities 2 964 24 735 3 826 0 31 525

financial liabilities at amortized cost
liabilities to credit institutions 71 820 81 080 150 0 153 050
liabilities to the public and public sector entities 196 755 2 606 70 0 199 430
Debt securities issued to the public 4 497 9 171 43 821 0 57 489

36. assets and liabilities denominated in domestic and foreign currency 2010 2009
Foreign foreign

Balance sheet item Domestic currency Total Domestic currency Total
loans and other claims

cash on hand 27 512 0 27 512 45 044 0 45 044
claims on the public and public sector entities 58 090 0 58 090 49 503 77 49 581

financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
claims on credit institutions 15 843 3 158 19 001 10 711 6 696 17 407
Debt securities 273 683 1 336 275 019 271 744 0 271 744
Shares and participations 67 033 25 642 92 675 92 351 37 624 129 975
Derivative financial instruments 18 921 496 19 418 13 715 229 13 944

other assets 134 654 26 387 161 041 121 455 41 663 163 118
Total   595 736 57 020 652 757 604 523 86 289 690 813

financial liabilities at amortized cost
liabilities to credit institutions 21 161 0 21 161 153 050 0 153 050
liabilities to the public and public sector entities 293 574 4 706 298 279 188 104 11 326 199 430
Debt securities issued to the public 62 829 0 62 829 57 489 0 57 489

financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Derivative contracts and liabilities held for trading 31 778 10 670 42 449 17 331 29 574 46 905

other liabilities 145 054 26 173 171 227 135 688 38 566 174 253
Total 554 396 41 549 595 945 551 661 79 466 631 127
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37. Value of financial instruments across the three levels of the fair value hierarchy Level1 Level2 Level3 Total
fair value 2010 2010 2010
financial assets:

Shares and participations classified as held for trading 53 941 0 2 984 56 925
Shares and participations, other 28 554 0 7 119 35 673
Debt securities 239 638 35 381 0 275 019
positive market values from derivatives 2 641 4 891 11 886 19 418

Total financial assets held at fair value 324 774 40 272 21 989 387 035

financial liabilities:
Shares and participations classified as held for trading 20 973 0 0 20 973
negative market values from derivatives 3 088 4 870 13 517 21 476

Total financial liabilities held at fair value 24 062 4 870 13 517 42 449

2009 2009 2009 Total
financial assets:

Shares and participations classified as held for trading 74 206 0 91 74 297
Shares and participations, other 49 589 0 6 089 55 678
Debt securities 21 036 250 253 455 271 744
positive market values from derivatives 3 943 1 272 8 729 13 944

Total financial assets held at fair value 148 774 251 525 15 364 415 663

financial liabilities:
Shares and participations classified as held for trading 33 246 0 0 33 246
negative market values from derivatives 2 595 1 069 9 995 13 659

Total financial liabilities held at fair value 35 841 1 069 9 995 46 905

Explanation of fair value hierarchies:
level 1

fair values measured using quoted prices in active markets for identical instruments.

level 2
fair values measured using directly or indirectly observable inputs, other than those included in level 1.

level 3
fair values measured using inputs that are not based on observable market data.

level 1 of the hierarchy includes listed shares, mutual funds and derivatives listed on exchanges, and debt securities
that are traded in active oTc- and public markets.

Shares and participations classified in level 3 are usually instruments which are not publicly traded. These instruments are valued to purchase
price unless a better opinion of the fair value is available, like the net asset value of the share, or for venture capital funds; the valuation received
from the fund management company.

Derivatives in level 2 or 3 are derivatives whose values are calculated with pricing models widely in use, like Black-Scholes.

Derivative valuations for level 3 instruments contain inputs (volatility and dividend estimate) which are not directly observable in the market.

Debt securities valuations that are obtained from markets that are not fully active, have  a fair value level hierarchy of 2. 
level 3 valuations for debt securities are valuations received directly from the arranger of the issue.
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38. analysis of financial instruments categorized in level 3
financial assets:

Shares and participations classified as held for trading 2 984 91
unlisted shares and participations 2 198 1 319
venture capital funds 4 921 4 770
oTc equity derivatives 11 886 8 729

Total financial assets held at fair value 21 989 15 364

financial liabilities:
oTc equity derivatives 13 517 9 995

Total financial liabilities held at fair value 13 517 9 995

Significant changes during the year, considering level 3 categorized instruments:
Bought venture capital funds 253 1 214
Bought unlisted shares 1 243 297
fair value changes for venture capital funds 139 -1 377
Sold debt securities 0 2 805
reclassified debt securities to level 2 from level 3 471 1 953
reclassified debt securities to level 3 from level 2 0 455

The reason for the reclassification is that a more reliable fair value has been obtained from the market.

change in derivatives is attributed to both an appreciation in value of bought and sold options, and a larger position in oTc options.

if the volatility estimate in the options pricing model for level 3 categorized options,
is changed to a publicly available historical volatility, the options market value would change by net + eur 0.07 million.

39. Unrealized profit/loss for financial instruments categorized in level 3 Unrealized p/L at unrealized p/l at
year-end 2010 year-end 2009

financial assets:
Shares and participations classified as held for trading 421 37
Shares and participations, other -524 -962
Debt securities 0 -45
positive market values from derivatives 2 963 -1 118

unrealized p/l at year-end, financial assets 2 860 -2 087

financial liabilities:
negative market values from derivatives -4 555 -179

unrealized p/l at year-end, financial liabilities -4 555 -179

Total unrealized profit (loss), level 3 instruments -1 695 -2 266

Total unrealized profit is recorded in net income from securities transactions.
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40. Securities lending
Market value of securities lending at 31.12. 23 889 35 718

41. Fair values and book values of financial assets and financial liabilities 2010 2010
book value Fair value

liquid assets 27 512 27 512
Debt securities eligible for refinancing with central banks 236 703 236 703
claims on credit institutions 19 001 19 001
claims on the public and public sector entities 58 090 58 090
Debt securities 38 316 38 316
Shares and participations 92 599 92 599
Shares and participations in associates 76 76
Derivative contracts 19 418 19 418

financial liabilities
liabilities to credit institutions 21 161 21 161
liabilities to the public and public sectory entities 298 279 298 279
Debt securities issued to the public 62 829 62 277

Derivative contracts and other trading liabilities 42 449 42 449

The lending rate is tied to the euribor rates, and so the carrying amount of loans is not considered to differ significantly from the fair value.
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42. pension obligations
in finland, the personnel’s statutory pension cover was arranged through evli group’s joint pension fund until December 31, 2009. in the calculation of the
pension fund’s net assets, principles compliant with national legislation have been taken into account when appraising pension assets and liabilities. as the
number of people within the scope of the joint pension fund operations fell below 300 the responsibility and asset management of the pension fund was
transferred to varma Mutual pension insurance company on December 31, 2009. The transfer has been handled as the fulfillment of an obligation.
The arrangement under the employees’ pensions act (Tyel) with the insurance company is a defined contribution scheme. 

Defined benefit pension assets recognised in the balance sheet 
present value of the obligation 0 7 640
effect of settlement 0 -7 640
fair value of plan assets 0 -7 059
effect of settlement 0 7 059
overfunded 0 0

unrecognised actuarial gains (+) / losses (-) 0 -408
effect of settlement 0 408
liability/asset recognised in balance sheet 0 0

The positive effect on profit or loss owing to the defined benefit plans
current service cost 0 761
interest expense 0 431
expected return on plan assets 0 -476
net actual (gain) loss recognised in pl 0 97
effect of settlement 0 -173
Total 0 640

The actual return on the assets was eur 1,591,013 in 2009.

The movement in the defined benefit obligation over the year
present value of the defined benefit obligation 1.1. 0 7 832
current service cost 0 761
interest expense 0 431
actuarial gains (-) / losses (+) 0 -1 383
effect of settlement 0 -7 640
Defined benefit obligation at 31.12. 0 0

The movement in the fair value of plan assets of the year
fair value of plan assets at 1.1. 0 7 259
expected return on plan assets 0 476
actuarial gains (+) / losses (-) 0 1 115
contributions paid by the employer 0 -1 791
effect of settlement 0 -7 059
fair value of plan assets at 31.12. 0 0
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principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date 
Discount rate 0.00% 5.50%
expected return on plan assets 0.00% 6.30%
future salary increases 0.00% 6.00%

The expected return on the assets in the arrangement are calculated on the basis of ten-year projected returns, and the rate of
compensation increase is calculated by predicting the average annual development of salaries over the next ten years.

Three-year record 31.12.10 31.12.09 31.12.08
Defined benefit obligation 0 0 7 832
fair value of plan assets 0 0 7 259
liability/asset recognised in balance sheet 0 0 -573

experience adjustments on plan assets 0 11 115 -3 817
experience adjustments on plan liabilities 0 -1 383 15

43. assets pledged as collateral and other commitments 2010 2009
Securities 130 887 237 103
cash deposits 1 604 2 656

44. Operating leases
not later than one year 352 368
over year not later than five year 378 305
later than five year 0 4

45. Other rental commitments
rental liabilities up to one year 2 377 1 994
rental liabilities over one year 12 569 11 305

46. breakdown of off-balance sheet commitments
commitments given to a third party on behalf of a customer* 6 419 9 266
irrevocable commitments given in favour of a customer 1 672 2 277
guarantees on behalf of others 530 530
unused credit facilities 3 055 2 508

* commitments given on behalf of a customer for a third party include collaterals given on behalf of customers in Hypovereins bank, oMX and SeB. 
The customers have covered their collateral to evli in full, with the exception of the collateral deficit of eur 0.07 million of a single customer.
other irrevocable commitments given on behalf of a customer comprise subscription commitments guaranteed on behalf of customers.

47. asset management services offered by the credit institution (million euros) 
assets under management at evli Bank’s asset Management as of December 31

gross 7 258 7 277
net 5 162 4 897

assets under management on the basis of power of attorney
Discretionary asset management 2 058 1 830
consultative asset management 96 91
Total 2 154 1 921
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48. Related party disclosures

The group’s related parties include the parent company, subsidiaries, and associates. related parties also include the group management consisting
of the members of the board of directors and the group’s management team, as well as the board members of the subsidiaries. 

in ownership Share of voting
Subsidiaries and associates Domicile until ownership, % rights, %
evli fund Management ltd finland 100 100 
evli life ltd finland 100 100 
evli property investments ltd finland 100 100 
epi russia partners i ltd finland 50 50 
epi russia partners ii ltd finland 100 100 
epi Healthcare partners oy finland 100 100 
evli alexander Management oy finland 45 Majority
evli russia oy finland 55 Majority
ooo evli St. petersburg russia 100 Majority
ooo evli Moscow russia 100 Majority
aS evli Securities estonia 100 100 
evli fonder aB Sweden 100 100 
Baltic SMe Management B.v netherlands 33 33 
Bif Management ltd Jersey 10 33 

1 000 euroS 2010 2009

compensation of board of Directors and cEOs
Salaries, ceos -1 232 -666
Salaries, members of Board of Directors -384 -290

Group pension associated Group
Transactions with related parties fund companies management
Sales 0 0 4
receivables 0 0 6
liabilities 0 0 64

Shares owned by related parties 3 375 560

Transactions with related parties 2009
Sales 0 0 4
receivables 0 0 212
liabilities 0 0 134

Shares owned by related parties 3 376 076

Fees paid to auditors 2010 2009
audit fees KpMg -277 -279
other KpMg -65 -253
Total KpMg -342 -532



4 7  |  E V L I  b a n k  p L c  f i n a n c i a l  r e v i e w  2 0 1 0  |  p a r e n t  c o m p a n y
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interest income 1. 8 164 10 794
interest expenses 2. -5 962 -7 609
nET InTEREST IncOME 2 203 3 185

fee and commission income 3. 42 968 29 440
fee and commission expenses 4. -5 541 -4 884
net income from securities transactions and foreign exchange dealing 5.

net income from securities transactions 1 454 11 714
net income from foreign exchange dealing 552 1 404

other operating income 6. 660 968
nET REVEnUE 42 295 41 826

administrative expenses
personnel expenses 7. -21 721 -17 211
other administrative expenses 8. -14 743 -13 234

Depreciation, amortization and impairment charges 9. -2 853 -1 746
other operating expenses 10. -3 065 -2 781
impairment losses on loans and other receivables 10. 0 -9
impairment losses on other financial assets 11. 0 -2 329
OpERaTInG pROFIT/LOSS -83 4 516

pROFIT bEFORE IncOME TaX -86 4 516

income taxes 12. 120 -1 697
pROFIT/LOSS FOR THE FInancIaL YEaR 34 2 819

c O n S O L I D aT E D  I n c O M E  S TaT E M E n T
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1 000 eUroS note 31.12.2010 31.12.2009

aSSETS

cash and cash equivalents 27 512 45 044
Debt securities eligible for refinancing with central banks 15.

on public sector entities 64 818 21 036
other 170 549 219 183

claims on credit institutions 13.
repayable on demand 16 087 12 462
other than those repayable on demand 1 176 1 765

claims on the public and public sector entities 14.
other than those repayable on demand 58 090 49 577

Debt securities 15.
other 38 316 31 521

Shares and participations 16. 68 118 110 978
Shares and participations in group undertakings 18 504 20 175
Derivative contracts 18. 19 418 13 944
intangible assets 19. 9 183 5 080
property, plant and equipment 20. 1 028 1 263
other assets 21. 135 303 136 230
accrued income and prepayments 22. 5 796 5 620
Deferred tax assets 23. 462 534

TOTaL aSSETS 634 358 674 413

pa R E n T  c O M pa n Y ’ S  b a L a n c E  S H E E T
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LIabILITIES anD EQUITY

liaBilitieS

liabilities to credit institutions and central banks
central banks 24. 0 90 000
credit institutions
 repayable on demand 0 27 000
 other than those repayable on demand 21 161 36 050

liabilities to the public and public sector entities 25.
Deposits
 repayable on demand 280 764 152 696
 other 26 645 19 194
other liabilities
 other than those repayable on demand 4 911 37 056

Debt securities issued to the public 26.
Bonds 51 862 51 004
other 10 967 6 485

Derivative contracts and other trading liabilities 27. 42 449 46 905
other liabilities 28. 125 978 137 804
accrued expenses and deferred income 29. 13 018 9 067
Subordinated liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities 30. 842 0

total liaBilitieS 578 598 613 261

eQUity 31.
Share capital 30 194 30 194
Share premium fund 1 839 1 839
fund of invested non-restricted equity 10 291 10 013
translation difference 0 -90
retained earnings 13 436 19 196
total eQUity 55 761 61 152

TOTaL LIabILITIES anD EQUITY 634 358 674 413

1 000 eUroS note 31.12.2010 31.12.2009
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c O n S O L I D aT E D  S TaT E M E n T  O F  c a S H  F L O W

1 000 eUroS 1.1.-31.12.2010 1.1.-31.12.2009

cash flow from operating activities
interest and commission received and proceeds from securities transactions incl. dividends 32 570 84 681
interest and commissions paid -11 007 -14 390
cash payments to employees and suppliers -36 410 -28 890

increase (-) or decrease in operating assets:
net change in trading book assets and liabilities 32 763 75 048
Deposits held for regulatory or monetary control purposes 590 -1 423
issue of loan capital 5 340 936
funds advanced to customers -31 951 -60 600

net cash from operating activities before income taxes -8 107 55 364
income taxes -340 234

net cash used in operating activities -8 447 55 597

cash flow from investing activities
proceeds from sales of subsidiaries and associates 1 330 -5 398
Dividend received 1 891 0
interest received 1 3
acquisition of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets -3 264 -1 993
Group loans receivables 25 584

net cash used in investing activities -18 -6 804

cash flow from financing activities
proceeds from issue of share capital 278 2 547
purchase of own shares -513 -1 540
payment of finance lease liabilities -330 -371
Dividends paid -4 977 -2 829

net cash from financing activities -5 541 -2 192

net increase in cash and cash equivalents -14 006 46 601

cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 57 506 10 869

effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 98 36

cash and cash equivalents* at end of period 43 599 57 506

* cash and cash equivalents include cash and cash equivalents and claims on credit institutions repayable on demand.  
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a c c O U n T I n G  p O L I c I E S  O n  pa R E n T  c O M pa n Y  
E V L I  b a n k  p L c 

basic information on parent company Evli bank plc
evli Bank plc is domiciled in Helsinki and its registered ad-
dress is aleksanterinkatu 19 a, fi-00100 Helsinki.

evli Bank plc’s financial statements are prepared and 
presented in compliance with the provisions of finland’s 
act on credit institutions, the ministry of finance decision 
on the financial statements of credit institutions and in-
vestment services companies, and the regulations of the 
financial Supervision authority. they additionally comply 
with the provisions of the accounting act and the com-
panies’ act regarding financial statements, and apply the 
exceptions specified in the act on credit institutions, sec-
tion 30, paragraph 2. 

the accounting policies applied to the financial state-
ments of evli Bank plc (the parent company’s financial 
statements) are the same as those applied to the evli Bank 
Group, with the exceptions specified below. 

Employee benefits
Until 2010 the employees’ statutory pension insurance 
was arranged through evli Group’s joint pension fund. in 
the late fall of 2009, the Board of Directors of evli Group’s 
joint pension fund and evli Bank plc’s Board of Directors 
jointly resolved to transfer the pension liabilities to an em-
ployee pension insurance company. the pension liabilities 
were transferred to the varma employee pension compa-
ny as of December 31, 2009. 

Income taxes
Deferred taxes are calculated on all temporary differences 
between the carrying amount and the tax value. the larg-
est temporary differences arise from the depreciation of 
tangible fixed assets. 

Leases
leases of tangible assets in which a substantial part of the 
risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the par-
ent company are classified as finance leases. in the parent 
company financial statements, the payments made on the 
basis of such leases are treated as rental expenses. nor are 
the assets acquired through finance leases recognised in 
the balance sheet. 

acquired businesses
evli ii asset management ltd was merged with evli Bank 
plc as a parent-subsidiary merger. the merger assets aris-
ing from the merger have been treated as intangible rights 
and will be amortized over their useful life in accordance 
with the Group’s accounting policies.
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n OT E S  TO  I n c O M E  S TaT E M E n T

1 000 eUroS 2010 2009

1. Interest income
at fair value through profit or loss

Debt securities 6 939 9 121
Derivative contracts 0 75

interest income from other loans and claims
claims on credit institutions 279 234
claims on the public and public sector entities 943 1 356
other interest income 3 8

interest income, total 8 164 10 794

2. Interest expenses
liabilities to the public, public sector entities and credit institutions -3 455 -4 950
Debt securities issued to the public -2 472 -2 632
other interest expenses -34 -27

interest expenses, total -5 962 -7 609

3. commission income
credit related fees and commissions 18 13
income from payment transactions 0 0
insurance brokerage 24 23
advisory services 7 874 3 272
Securities brokerage 13 725 9 840
mutual funds 13 252 9 189
asset management 4 564 3 677
custody services 2 696 2 272
other operations 815 1 154
commission income, total 42 968 29 440

4. commission expenses
trading fees paid to stock exchanges -1 084 -1 218
other -4 457 -3 666
commission expenses, total -5 541 -4 884

5. net income from securities transactions and foreign exchange dealing
income from equity investments

Dividends from financial assets classified as held for trading 2 427 808
income from equity investments, total 2 427 808

financial assets held for trading 1 876 3 837
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss -2 850 7 069
net income from securities transactions, total -973 10 906

Gains and losses changes in
on sales fair value Total total

Debt securities -4 702 -656 -5 358 3 626
Shares and derivative contracts 8 347 -3 962 4 385 7 280
net income from securities transactions, total 3 645 -4 618 -973 10 906
net income from foreign exchange operations 552 1 404
net income from securities transactions and foreign exchange operations, total -422 12 311
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1 000 eUroS 2010 2009

6. Other operating income
rental income 71 123
Gain on sale of owner-occupied investment properties 3 0
other income 586 845
other operating income, total 660 968

7. Employee benefits 2010 2009
wages and salaries -16 683 -14 595
- of which bonuses -2 155 -1 945
other social security costs -1 778 -1 340
-of which relating to bonuses -156 -31
pension expenses -3 261 -1 275
- of which relating to bonuses -316 -235
-defined benefit plans 0 -146
-defined contribution plans -3 261 -1 129
employee benefits, total -21 721 -17 211

number of personnel during the period, average 179 179

 number of personnel at the end of the period 183 179

Employees by business segment at the end of the period
markets 38 61
corporate finance 20 17
asset management 40 42
administration and other 85 59
total 183 179

8. Other administrative expenses
office maintenance expenses -589 -503
office expenses -1 199 -1 193
telephone and postage expenses -549 -489
information expenses -2 069 -1 847
it related expenses -4 490 -4 088
Business expenses -359 -236
travel expenses -566 -546
car costs -119 -141
other human resources related expenses -955 -588
marketing expenses -1 311 -1 334
Banking and custodian expenses -681 -530
external services fees -1 860 -1 741
other administrative expenses, total -14 743 -13 234

9. Depreciation, amortization and impairment losses
Depreciation and amortization
applications and software -1 412 -1 159

 other intangible assets -980 -95
equipment and furniture -460 -493
Depreciation, amortization and impaiment losses, total -2 853 -1 746
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1 000 eUroS 2010 2009

10. Other operating expenses
Supervision expenses -94 -133
rental expenses -2 300 -2 256
loss on sale of owned properties, plant and equipment -2 -10
loss on merger -335 0
other expenses -333 -381
other operating expenses, total -3 065 -2 781

11. Impairment losses on loans and other commitments and other financial assets 
claims on the public and public sector entities

actual impairment losses 2 0
reversals of impairment losses -1 2
individually impairment losses 0 -11

Guarantees and other off-balance sheet commitments
other financial impairment losses

impairment losses from subsidiary shares 0 -2 329
impairment losses on loans and other commitments, total 0 -2 338

12. Income taxes
current tax expense 0 -1 465
taxes from previous years -43 0
Deferred taxes 163 -257
other taxes 0 25
income taxes, total 120 -1 697

13. claims on credit institutions
repayable on demand

Domestic credit institutions 14 012 5 016
 foreign credit institutions 2 075 7 446

repayable on demand, total 16 087 12 462
other than repayable on demand

central banks
foreign credit institutions 1 176 1 765

other than repayable on demand, total 1 176 1 765

claims on credit institutions, total 17 263 14 227

14. claims on the public and public sector entities by sector
other than repayable on demand

enterprises and housing associations 3 493 2 454
financial and insurance corporations 0 25
Households 46 528 38 606
foreign countries 8 068 8 492

other than repayable on demand, total 58 090 49 577

claims on the public and public sector entities by sector, total 58 090 49 577

n OT E S  TO  b a L a n c E  S H E E T
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1 000 eUroS

15. Debt securities publicly 2010 2009
issued by public corporations quoted Other Total total
Government bonds held for trading 64 818 0 64 818 21 036
issued by public corporations, total 64 818 0 64 818 21 036

issued by other than public corporations 
Banks' certificates of deposit 32 900 32 900 20 767
Bonds issued by banks 64 059 111 905 175 964 229 670
other debt securities 0 0 0 267

issued by other than public corporations, total 64 059 144 806 208 865 250 704

Debt securities, total 273 683 271 740

Debt securities by balance sheet category
Debt securities eligible for refinancing with central banks

on public sector entities 64 818 21 036
other 170 549 219 183

Debt securities
other 38 316 31 521

total 273 683 271 740

16. Shares and participations
fair valued through profit or loss

2010 publicly
Balance sheet category quoted Other Total
Shares and participations

available for sale 0 1 896 1 896
valued at fair value throuh profit or loss
 Held for trading 53 941 2 984 56 925
 other 4 081 5 216 9 297

Shares and participations, total 58 022 10 096 68 118

2009 publicly
Balance sheet category quoted other total
Shares and participations

valued at fair value throuh profit or loss
 Held for trading 74 276 21 74 297
 other 30 764 5 917 36 681

Shares and participations, total 105 040 5 938 110 978

net risk position is described in page 23.

17. Shares and participations in associates and joint ventures 2010 2009
at the beginning of the period 0 345
at the end of the period 0 0
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1 000 eUroS

18. Derivative contracts

Overall effect of risks associated with derivative contracts nominal value of underlying 2010 2010
Remaining maturity

Held for trading Less than 1 year 1-5 years Fair value (+/-) aSSETS LIabILITIES
interest rate derivatives

futures 74 900 0 0 0 0
currency-linked derivatives 342 884 0 -10 4 749 4 759
equity-linked derivatives

futures 28 251 0 -504 308 812
options bought 37 286 59 157 13 375 13 952 578
options sold 61 912 62 322 -14 919 408 15 327

other derivatives
Held for trading, total 545 233 121 479 -2 058 19 418 21 476

Derivative contracts, total 545 233 121 479 -2 058 19 418 21 476

Overall effect of risks associated with derivative contracts 2009 2009

Held for trading
interest rate derivatives

futures 75 700 0 0 0 0
currency-linked derivatives 95 237 0 6 976 971
equity-linked derivatives

futures 24 554 0 -49 535 584
Bought 92 882 51 248 11 323 12 005 682
Sold 47 502 55 573 -10 994 428 11 422

other derivatives
Held for trading, total 335 874 106 821 285 13 944 13 659

Derivative contracts, total 335 874 106 821 285 13 944 13 659

equity derivatives held for trading, and other liabilities held for trading (notes 18 and 27) hedge the equity delta risk for shares and participations in the trading
book (note 16). the delta-adjusted equity risk was at the end of 2010 5,9 million euros, including shares and participations in the banking book.

the interest rate derivatives hedge the interest rate risk in assets and liabilities in the balance sheet.

currency derivatives comprise commitments made against clients and the associated hedges, and contracts made to hedge currency risk in the balance sheet.

equity derivatives in the banking book hedge the equity risk in equity-linked bonds issued to the public.
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1 000 eUroS 2010 2009

19. Intangible assets

Software or projects in progress
cost at 1.1. 535 945
increases 2 148 946
Decreases -1 130 -1 356
cost at 31.12. 1 553 535
Book value at 31.12. 1 553 535

applications and software
cost at 1.1. 10 702 8 471
exchange difference 9 4
increases 1 329 2 227
cost at 31.12. 12 040 10 702
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses at 1.1. -6 328 -5 191
exchange difference -6 -2
amortisation for the period -1 413 -1 159
accumulated amortisation in respect of decreases 0 24
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses at 31.12. -7 747 -6 328
Book value at 31.12. 4 293 4 374

Depreciation leasehold improvements FaS
acquisition cost at 1.1. 3 241 3 311
exchange difference 3 1
increases 0 -71
acquisition cost at 31.12. 3 245 3 241
accumulated depreciation at 1.1. -3 071 -3 047
exchange difference -2 -1
Depreciation for the period -74 -95
accumulated depreciation in respect of decreases 0 71
accumulated depreciation at 31.12. -3 147 -3 071
Book value at 31.12. 98 171

Other intangible assets
increases 4 145 0
cost at 31.12. 4 145 0
amortisation for the period -906 0
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses at 31.12. -906 0
Book value at 31.12. 3 239 0

Intangible assets, total at 31.12. 9 183 5 080

book value of intangible assets at 31.12. 9 183 5 080
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1 000 eUroS 2010 2009

20. property, plant and equipment

Equipment and furniture
cost at 1.1. 5 534 5 563
exchange difference 83 32
increases 224 55
Decreases -694 -116
cost at 31.12. 5 146 5 534
accumulated depreciation at 1.1. -4 861 -4 553
exchange difference -64 -20
Depreciation for the period -464 -484
translation difference from depreciation for the period -1 -1
accumulated depreciation in respect of decreases 681 197
accumulated depreciation 31.12. -4 709 -4 861
Book value at 31.12. 437 672

property, plant, and equipment, total 31.12. 437 672

Other tangible assets
cost at 1.1. 591 584
increases 0 7
cost at 31.12. 591 591
Book value at 31.12. 591 591

property, plant and equipment, total at 31.12. 1 028 1 263

book value of tangible assets at 31.12. 1 028 1 263
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1 000 eUroS 2010 2009

21. Other assets
Securities sale receivables 14 142 20 584
commission receivables 3 382 1 961
Securities broking receivables 116 865 113 434
other receivables 914 251
other assets total 135 303 136 230

22. accrued income and prepayments
interest 2 447 2 559
taxes 11 21
Staff-related 579 371
other items 2 759 2 669
accrued income and prepayments total 5 796 5 620

23. Deferred tax assets
Due to timing differences 462 534
Deferred tax assets total 462 534

Deferred tax assets result from timing differences in fixed asset depreciation. 

24. Liabilities to credit institutions and central banks
central banks 0 90 000
credit institutions

repayable on demand 0 27 000
others 21 161 36 050

liabilities to credit institutions and central banks, total 21 161 153 050

25. Liabilities to the public and public sector entities
Deposits

repayable on demand 280 764 152 696
other than repayable on demand 26 645 19 194

other liabilities
other than repayable on demand 4 911 37 056

liabilities to the public and public sector entities, total 312 320 208 946

26. Debt securities issued to the public
certificate of deposits 10 967 6 485
Bonds 51 862 51 004
Debt securities issued to the public, total 62 829 57 489

Breakdown by maturity less than 3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years
Debt securities issued to the public 6 492 7 400 48 936

changes in bonds issued to the public
issues 24 426 30 788
repurchases 18 847 21 936

27. Derivative contracts and other liabilities held for trading
Derivative contracts 21 476 13 659
Due to short selling 20 973 33 246
Derivative contracts and other liabilities held for trading, total 42 449 46 905
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1 000 eUroS 2010 2009

28. breakdown of other liabilities
Securities broking liabilities 111 936 118 102
Securities purchase liabilities 12 662 17 322
income tax payable 30 13
personnel related 609 557
other short-term liabilities 672 1 759
vat payable 70 51
other liabilities, total 125 978 137 804

29. accrued expenses and deferred income
interest 1 894 1 398
tax payables 0 1 379
personnel related 5 625 4 843
other accrued expenses 5 500 1 446
accrued expenses and deferred income, total 13 019 9 067

30. Deferred tax liabilities
Due to timing differences 842 0
Deferred tax liability, total 842 0

31. changes in equity capital
Share capital

Book value 1.1. 30 194 30 194
Book value 31.12. 30 194 30 194

Share premium
Book value 1.1. 1 839 1 839
Book value 31.12. 1 839 1 839

fund of invested non-restricted equity
Book value 1.1. 10 013 7 466
increases 278 2 547
Decreases
transfers between other items
Book value 31.12. 10 291 10 013

retained earnings from previous years
Book value 1.1. 19 106 20 747
increases -4 977 -2 829
acquisition of own shares -513 -1 540
tranlation difference -214 -92
Book value 31.12. 13 402 16 287

profit/loss for financial year 34 2 819

32. Own shares held by the credit institution
the credit institution holds own shares 64 333
the cost of own shares is eUr 512 602
the cost of purchase has been deducted from unrestricted equity.

33. Share capital, parent company
the company has one series of shares outstanding and each share represents one vote.

total number of shares is 4 202 799
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34. changes in the share capital, board authorizations and option programs  
number of fund of invested

number of own outstanding Share premium non-restricted
shares held shares Share capital fund equity

1.1.2009 142 976 4 073 853 30 194 1 839 7 466
aquisition of own shares 2008 authorization 32 454 -32 454 0 0 0
aquisition of own shares 2009 authorization 75 300 -75 300 0 0 0
nullification of own shares 2009 decision -224 330 0 0 0 0
Share issue 2009 authorization 0 186 300 0 0 2 547

31.12.2009 26 400 4 152 399 30 194 1 839 10 013
total number of shares 4 178 799

1.1.2010 26 400 4 152 399 30 194 1 839 10 013
aquisition of own shares 2009 authorization 4 683 -4 683 0 0 0
aquisition of own shares 2010 authorization 33 250 -33 250 0 0 0
Share issue 2009 authorization 0 15 000 0 0 0
Share issue 2010 authorization 0 9 000 0 0 278

31.12.2010 64 333 4 138 466 30 194 1 839 10 291
total number of shares 4 202 799

Share premium fund
the share premium fund comprises the following items: the amount exceeding the counter-book value of the share paid for shares prior to September 1, 2006
in a new issue; the amount paid for a subscription right based on an option right; gain on sale of the company’s own shares; and the amount by which the
share capital is lowered and which is not used to cover an adopted loss, transferred to a fund to be used in accordance with the decision of the general
meeting of the shareholders or distributed to the shareholders. 

Fund of invested non-restricted equity
the fund of invested non-restricted equity includes the proceeds from the disposals of own shares received after September 1, 2006.

35. Largest shareholders and share ownership breakdown Share % 

oy prandium ab (thomas thesleff and his family) 950 820 22.62 
oy Scripofilum ab (Henrik andersin) 950 820 22.62 
oy fincorp ab (roger Kempe) 579 945 13.80 
ingman Group oy ab 465 000 11.06 
lehtimäki maunu 98 432 2.34 
tallberg claes 92 439 2.20 
Hollfast John 82 080 1.95 
Hartikainen raimo 41 504 0.99 
Jousimies panu 39 768 0.95 
von Bonsdorff petter 39 416 0.94 

3 340 224 79.48 
others 862 575 20.52 
total 4 202 799 100.00 
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36. Maturities of financial assets and financial liabilities of credit institution 
Due to the nature of the business, predicting future cash flows is difficult. cash flows from derivatives are especially difficult to predict. 
the maturities of derivatives are provided in note 17; the maturities are as agreed, which does not fully conform to real cash flows. 

less than
2010 3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years 5-10 years Total
loans and other claims

claims on credit institutions 17 263 0 0 0 17 263
claims on the public and public sector entities 4 390 12 574 40 376 750 58 090

financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Debt securities eligible for refinancing with central banks 0 0 235 367 0 235 367
Debt securities 2 998 31 858 3 460 0 38 316

financial liabilities at amortized cost
liabilities to credit institutions 18 011 1 650 1 500 0 21 161
liabilities to the public and public sector entities 305 372 6 861 86 0 312 320
Debt securities issued to the public 6 492 7 400 48 936 0 62 829

2009
loans and other claims

claims on credit institutions 14 227 0 0 0 14 227
claims on the public and public sector entities 4 753 11 936 31 781 1 107 49 577

financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Debt securities eligible for refinancing with central banks 4 008 54 090 171 367 10 754 240 219
Debt securities 2 964 24 735 3 822 0 31 521

financial liabilities at amortized cost
liabilities to credit institutions 71 820 81 080 150 0 153 050
liabilities to the public and public sector entities 206 277 2 599 70 0 208 946
Debt securities issued to the public 4 497 9 171 43 821 0 57 489

37. assets and liabilities denominated in domestic and foreign currency 
Foreign 2010 foreign 2009

Balance sheet item Domestic currency Total Domestic currency total
loans and other claims

cash on hand 27 512 0 27 512 45 044 0 45 044
claims on the public and public sector entities 58 090 0 58 090 49 528 49 49 577

financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
claims on credit institutions 15 404 1 859 17 263 7 952 6 275 14 227
Debt securities 273 683 0 273 683 271 740 0 271 740
Shares and participations 55 439 31 183 86 622 73 354 37 624 110 978
Derivative financial instruments 18 921 496 19 418 13 715 229 13 944

other assets 126 213 25 559 151 771 123 873 45 029 168 902
total   575 262 59 097 634 359 585 207 89 206 674 413

financial liabilities at amortized cost
liabilities to credit institutions 21 161 0 21 161 153 050 0 153 050
liabilities to the public and public sector entities 307 624 4 696 312 320 197 626 11 319 208 946
Debt securities issued to the public 62 829 0 62 829 57 489 0 57 489

financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Derivative contracts and liabilities held for trading 31 778 10 670 42 449 17 331 29 574 46 905

other liabilities 115 148 24 691 139 839 108 753 38 118 146 871
total 538 540 40 058 578 598 534 249 79 012 613 261



6 3  |  E V L I  b a n k  p L c  f i n a n c i a l  r e v i e w  2 0 1 0  |  p a r e n t  c o m p a n y

1 000 eUroS 2010 2009

38. Securities lending
market value of securities lending at 31.12. 23 889 35 718

39. Fair values and book values of financial assets and financial liabilities book value Fair value
2010 2010

liquid assets 27 512 27 512
Debt securities eligible for refinancing with central banks 235 367 235 367
claims on credit institutions 17 263 17 263
claims on the public and public sector entities 58 090 58 090
Debt securities 38 316 38 316
Shares and participations 68 118 68 118
Shares and participations in group undertakings 18 504 18 504
Derivative contracts 19 418 19 418

financial liabilities
liabilities to credit institutions 21 161 21 161
liabilities to the public and public sectory entities 312 320 312 320
Debt securities issued to the public 62 829 62 277

Derivative contracts and other trading liabilities 42 449 42 449

40. assets pledged as collateral and other commitments 2010 2009
Securities 130 887 237 103
cash deposits 1 604 2 656

41. Operating leases
not later than one year 328 517
over year not later than five year 354 344
later than five year 0 4

42. Other rental commitments
rental liabilities up to one year 2 266 1 965
rental liabilities over one year 12 473 11 305

43. breakdown of off-balance sheet commitments
commitments given to a third party on behalf of a customer* 6 419 9 266
irrevocable commitments given in favour of a customer 1 672 2 277
Guarantees on behalf of others 530 530
Unused credit facilities 3 055 2 508

* commitments given on behalf of a customer for a third party include collaterals given on behalf of customers in Hypovereins bank, omX and SeB..
the customers have covered their collateral to evli in full, with the exception of the collateral deficit of eUr 0.07 million of a single customer.
other irrevocable commitments given on behalf of a customer comprise subscription commitments guaranteed on behalf of customers. 

44. asset management services offered by the credit institution (million euros)
assets under management at evli Bank's asset management as of December 31

Gross 7 258 7 277
net 5 162 4 897

assets under management on the basis of power of attorney
Discretionary asset management 2 058 1 830
consultative asset management 96 91
total 2 154 1 921
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evli Bank’s distributable assets total eUr 13,435,889.96   
of which profit for the financial year totals eUr 33,733.41. of which profit for the financial year totals eUr 33 733,41. 

the board of Directors proposes to the annual General meeting of Shareholders that:
- a dividend of eUr 1.25 per share be paid, totalling eUr 5,173,082.50
- a total of eUr 8,262,807.46 shall be left in shareholders’ equity

Helsinki, february11, 2011

 Henrik andersin robert ingman pekka Hietala
 chairman

 Harri-pekka Kaukonen timo Korvenpää mikael lilius

 thomas thesleff teuvo Salminen maunu lehtimäki
   ceo

THE bOaRD OF  D IREcTORS ’  pROpOSaL TO THE GEnERaL 
MEET InG FOR THE D ISTR IbUT IOn OF  pROF IT
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To the annual General Meeting of Evli bank plc
we have audited the accounting records, the financial statements, the report of the Board of Directors, and the admin-
istration of evli Bank plc for the year ended on December 31, 2010. The financial statements comprise the consolidated 
statement of financial position,  statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of 
cash flows, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, as well as the parent company’s balance sheet, income 
statement, cash flow statement and notes to the financial statements.

Responsibility of the board of Directors and the Managing Director
The Board of Directors and the Managing Director are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial state-
ments that give a true and fair view in accordance with international financial reporting Standards (ifrS) as adopted 
by the eU, as well as for the preparation of financial statements and the report of the Board of Directors that give a true 
and fair view in accordance with the laws and regulations governing the preparation of the financial statements and 
the report of the Board of Directors in finland. The Board of Directors is responsible for the appropriate arrangement 
of the control of the company’s accounts and finances, and the Managing Director shall see to it that the accounts of 
the company are in compliance with the law and that its financial affairs have been arranged in a reliable manner.

auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements, on the consolidated financial statements and 
on the report of the Board of Directors based on our audit. The auditing act requires that we comply with the require-
ments of professional ethics. we conducted our audit in accordance with good auditing practice in finland. Good au-
diting practice requires that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements and the report of the Board of Directors are free from material misstatement, and whether the members of 
the Board of Directors of the parent company and the Managing Director are guilty of an act or negligence which may 
result in liability in damages towards the company or have violated the limited liability companies act, finnish credit 
institutions act or the articles of association of the company. 

an audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the finan-
cial statements and the report of the Board of Directors. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. in making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of financial statements and re-
port of the Board of Directors that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal 
control. an audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements 
and the report of the Board of Directors. 

we believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion.

Opinion on the consolidated financial statements
in our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial per-
formance, and cash flows of the group in accordance with international financial reporting Standards (ifrS) as ad-
opted by the eU. 

Opinion on the company’s financial statements and the report of the board of Directors
in our opinion, the financial statements and the report of the Board of Directors give a true and fair view of both the 
consolidated and the parent company’s financial performance and financial position in accordance with the laws and 
regulations governing the preparation of the financial statements and the report of the Board of Directors in finland. 
The information in the report of the Board of Directors is consistent with the information in the financial statements. 

Helsinki, february 11, 2011

KPMG OY aB

Marcus Tötterman
authorized Public accountant in finland

a U D I TO R S ’  R E p O R T
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